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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  The air

          3  conditioning is coming through, thanks to our

          4  Sergeant-at-Arms.  We appreciate it very, very much.

          5  I'd like to call the School Construction Authority

          6  to the witness stand.  We have Linda Cocoran,

          7  Gregory Shaw, Kenrick Ou.  Did I do it right this

          8  time?  And I just want to introduce some of my

          9  colleagues who are here from the Committee.  I'll

         10  start from my right, Council Member Oliver Koppell,

         11  Council Member James Oddo, The Minority Leader, and

         12  Councilman James McMahon, not Tom, Michael McMahon,

         13  who's not on the Committee, but is the Chair of the

         14  Sanitation Committee, who's with us for the latter

         15  part of the Hearing and Council Member Annabel

         16  Palma.

         17                 The first item that we're going to be

         18  dealing with -- thank you.  No, that's not it.  The

         19  first item we're going to be dealing with is

         20  Brooklyn Community Board Seven, 20045452SCK,

         21  application submitted by the New York City School

         22  Construction Authority, pursuant to Section 1732 of

         23  the New York State Public Authorities Law for a

         24  proposed public school facility known as Sunset Park

         25  High School, a 1,640 seat facility for Instructional
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          2  Region Number Eight, located at the northwest corner

          3  of 35th Street and 4th Avenue, Block 688, Lots 26

          4  and 44.

          5                 Staten Island Community Board Two,

          6  20055201SCR, application submitted by the New York

          7  City School Construction Authority, pursuant to

          8  Section 1732 of the New York State Public

          9  Authorities Law for a proposed public school

         10  facility for approximately 1,652 seat Intermediate

         11  and High School facility located on the west side of

         12  Essex Drive, south of Richmond Hill Road for DOE

         13  Region Number Seven, Block 2450, Lots 80, 85, 320

         14  and 600.

         15                 We're ready.

         16                 MR. SHAW:  Good morning Chairman

         17  Felder and Council Members.  My name is Gregory

         18  Shaw.  I'm the Principal Attorney for Real Estate.

         19  To my left is Kenrick Ou, Manager of Operations and

         20  to my right is Linda Corcoran, Director of Real

         21  Estate for the Division of School Facilities for the

         22  Board of Education.  Thank you very much for holding

         23  this Hearing today for these two important projects,

         24  the first of which I will talk about is Sunset Park

         25  High School.
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          2                 The New York City School Construction

          3  Authority has undertaken its site selection process

          4  for the following proposed schools: Sunset Park High

          5  School in Brooklyn, in block, on block, tax block

          6  688, lots 26 and 44, which are privately owned, on

          7  the northwest corner of 35th Street and 4th Avenue,

          8  in region, DOE region number eight, Brooklyn

          9  Community Board Number Seven.  The project site is

         10  approximately 48,500 square feet, square foot

         11  assemblage of privately owned properties located in

         12  the Sunset Park section of Brooklyn.

         13                 The proposed site adjoins the John

         14  Andemic (phonetic) Park, which is owned by the City

         15  of New York and managed by the New York City

         16  Department of Parks and Recreation. Under the

         17  proposed project, the SCA would acquire the

         18  privately owned lots, demolish the existing on- site

         19  and manufacturing warehouse structures and construct

         20  a new approximately 1,640 seat high school facility

         21  on the assemblage.

         22                 The notice of filing of the site plan

         23  was published in the New York Post and City Record

         24  on April 1, 2004. Brooklyn Community Board Number

         25  One was notified on April 1, 2004, was asked to hold
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          2  public hearings.  It held a hearing on April 28,

          3  2004.  Community Board Number Seven conducted a

          4  public hearing on the site plan and subsequently

          5  sent comments in support of the proposed site.  The

          6  City Planning Commission was also notified on April

          7  1st and it subsequently recommended in favor of the

          8  proposed site.

          9                 We are happy today to submit this

         10  site plan for your approval.  The site, our

         11  application was submitted to the Honorable Gifford

         12  A. Miller, at, the Speaker of the City Council on

         13  May 13, 2005.  We are now prepared to answer any

         14  questions you may have on this proposed plan.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Before we take

         16  any questions, I'd like to ask the Minority Leader,

         17  Councilman Oddo, to say a few words about the item

         18  in Staten Island.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you Mr.

         20  Chair.  This is actually not in my district, it's in

         21  Council Member Andy Lanza's district, but it's right

         22  on the border and it will actually draw students

         23  from my district and probably some students from

         24  Council Member McMahon's district.

         25                 The way it's situated will help
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          2  alleviate the overcrowding in all three Council

          3  Districts.  This is on the same site as PS58, which

          4  is the newest school on Staten Island and it's

          5  making a nice educational complex and we thank

          6  everyone involved and we hope it's a reality sooner

          7  rather than later. Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any of my

          9  colleagues have any questions?  Councilman McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         11  Mr. Chairman. I just want to associate myself with

         12  those comments, but just call -- your position Mr.,

         13  could you say your name again for the record?

         14                 MR. OU:  Yes, I'm Kenrick Ou.  I'm

         15  Site Acquisition Manager for the School Construction

         16  Authority.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay.

         18  Unfortunately, we do have a problem on Staten

         19  Island, IS51, which is operating at 200 percent, and

         20  this school was originally supposed to be a middle

         21  school that would relieve middle school

         22  overcrowding. Now, I have no problem with a high

         23  school coming in there, but we still have this

         24  serious middle school overcrowding issue, from IS51,

         25  you've read about it in The Post, you've read about
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          2  it in the New York Times, violence in the halls.

          3  So, I just urge you to keep working to find a way to

          4  relieve the overcrowding at IS51.

          5                 MR. SHAW:  Council Member McMahon, in

          6  fact, the high school we were talking about was for

          7  Sunset.  We have not yet gotten to the Staten Island

          8  project, which is an ISHS.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I do

         10  understand that, but it was originally a full IS --

         11                 MR. SHAW:  Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- And it

         13  got changed and so the relief that's going to come

         14  to IS51 is not there as much as it's needed.  So,

         15  I'd ask you, I approve what you're doing, but I urge

         16  you to keep working to alleviate this very dangerous

         17  situation that we have to the north in the IS

         18  system, because this was originally all IS and it's

         19  been changed to high school. We need both, so I'm

         20  not going to stand in the way of progress, but 51 is

         21  not being helped to the extent that it was going to

         22  be.

         23                 MR. SHAW:  I understand.  Thank you

         24  for the clarification.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any other of
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          2  my colleagues have any questions or comments?  Okay,

          3  thank you very much.

          4                 MR. SHAW:  You'll consider both of

          5  these submitted?  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, we --

          7                 MR. SHAW:  Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Consider both

          9  of them -- well, did you testify on both?

         10                 MR. SHAW:  No, I only testified on

         11  Sunset Park.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, that shows

         13  how much I've been listening.  I apologize.  Okay.

         14  On the second item. Council Member Gonzalez, do you

         15  have anything you'd like to mention about this

         16  school in Sunset Park?  If you want to catch your

         17  breath, I'll kill some time for a minute.

         18                 I'd like to mention to everyone who's

         19  made it their business to be here today and I just

         20  want, I don't know if it makes you feel any better,

         21  but everyone in the Council, at least that's in this

         22  room, did everything we could to ensure that we

         23  would have the larger room this morning.  Without

         24  telling you who you should beat up, everyone in here

         25  did whatever we could so that you would be
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          2  comfortable.  Unfortunately, that didn't work out

          3  the way it should.

          4                 So, the first two items we're dealing

          5  with, one has to do with the school construction

          6  authority, the second has to do with landmarks.  I

          7  think that it seems from your pins and some of your

          8  shirts that many of you are here for the third item,

          9  which has to do with the locations for the stations.

         10                 So, if you want, you're welcome to

         11  stand here and be as uncomfortable as you are now,

         12  but if you'd like to sit for about ten or 15

         13  minutes, I would say, there are seats on the

         14  balcony.  You know, all you have to do is go through

         15  the door there and then go through the other door

         16  and then somebody will help you find the balcony.

         17  You can sit for 15 minutes and somebody will make

         18  sure to come and tell you when we're going to be

         19  doing the garbage.  If not, you're welcome to stay.

         20  Okay? Thank you very much.

         21                 Now, Council Member Gonzalez on the

         22  item, the school in your district, if you'd like to

         23  say a few words.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Absolutely.

         25    I want to thank the New York City Construction
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          2  Authority.  I just want to say that this is 35 years

          3  after division started that we're sitting here on

          4  the site selection and I want to thank Councilman

          5  Simcha Felder for this opportunity.

          6                 Sunset Park has never had a high

          7  school.  I personally, many, many years ago, a

          8  hundred years ago, attended Ford Hamilton High

          9  School and had to take the bus as a very small

         10  child, as a young child, and I know that my parents

         11  had a lot of concern for me.  It was quite some

         12  ride.  My children had to ride to get to their high

         13  school and I am grateful that my granddaughter does

         14  not have to ride and will have a high school.

         15                 I know that Sunset Park, the

         16  Community Board and every parent and every child who

         17  will be attending this school is forever grateful.

         18  We will continue to be in the process, especially in

         19  respect to the curriculum and the design, because

         20  that's important to us.  But, today, I want to say

         21  that the site selection and what has happened is,

         22  for me, an incredible moment, and I thank you so

         23  much, from District 38 and we're going to move

         24  forward.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you and
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          2  before you testify on the other item, I just want to

          3  introduce the other three Members, colleagues that

          4  walked in, Councilman Leroy Comrie, all the way on

          5  my right and on my left, Councilman Robert Jackson

          6  and Councilman Bill Perkins all have joined us.

          7  Ready.

          8                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.  Thank you Chairman

          9  Felder.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Chair.

         11                 MR. SHAW:  Again.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I'd like to

         15  ask to be allowed to vote as soon as possible on the

         16  items that are on the agenda.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, I'll

         18  let you know when that is.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, you can vote

         22  now.  You can vote now.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well, I'd

         24  just like to vote aye on all and be excused to

         25  attend another matter that's important to me.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Go ahead.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Aye on all.

          6  Thank you so much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

          8  Comrie.  He wants to vote as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I want to make

         11  it clear.  I want to make it clear that Chris

         12  Collins from the Land Use Division just reminded me

         13  to mention to all of you that we are only voting

         14  today on the schools, the two schools, not one, and

         15  the landmarks.  We are not voting today on the

         16  stations.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.  I

         18  just wanted to make that clear that I was aware of

         19  that for the record.  But, I'd like unanimous

         20  consent to vote on all items today.  I have a

         21  situation back in my district that they've asked me

         22  to come and look at, so.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         25  Thank you Mr. Chair.
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.  Thank you Chairman

          3  Felder and Council Members.  Again, my name is

          4  Gregory Shaw.  I'm Principal Attorney for Real

          5  Estate for the School Construction Authority and I'm

          6  pleased today to present to you or request for your

          7  approval an important project in the Borough of

          8  Staten Island.

          9                 The New York City School Construction

         10  Authority has undertaken the site selection process

         11  for the following proposed school: It is an

         12  intermediate high school in, High School 43 in the

         13  Borough of Staten Island, located on the Marsh

         14  Avenue school campus, adjacent to the existing new

         15  project, PS58. It is on the west side of Essex

         16  Drive, south of Richmond Hill, in DOE Region Number

         17  Seven, Staten Island Community Board Number Two.

         18                 The project consists of approximately

         19  13.2 acres of vacant, undeveloped property on the

         20  planned Marsh Avenue school campus and adjoins the

         21  site of PS58, as I mentioned before.  The majority

         22  of the site consists of lots 320 and 600, which were

         23  acquired by the City of New York for school purposes

         24  in the 1970's.  In addition, we will acquire two

         25  privately owned lots, lot 80 and lot 85.  Lot 80
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          2  and, is a small, privately owned vacant sliver of a

          3  lot, which will provide access for entrance to the

          4  campus.  Lot 85 is a vacant, privately owned

          5  property located in the mapped, but unimproved

          6  section of Westport Street.

          7                 Under the proposed project, the SCA

          8  would acquire these lots for approximately a 1,652

          9  seat intermediate high school facility.  A notice of

         10  filing of the site plan was published in the New

         11  York Post and the City Record on January 14, 2005.

         12  Community Board Number Two conducted a public

         13  hearing on the site plan and subsequently sent

         14  comments in support of the proposed site, with

         15  recommendations.  The City Planning Commission was

         16  also notified on January 14th and it subsequently

         17  recommended in favor of the proposed site.

         18                 We, the New York City School

         19  Construction Authority submitted an application to

         20  the Honorable Gifford A. Miller and the City Council

         21  and now are requesting this Subcommittee to vote in

         22  favor of the site.  Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Mr. Chair, I

         25  just want the record to reflect that all of us talk
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          2  about the overdevelopment problem in our communities

          3  and part of the reason why Staten Island is

          4  overdeveloped is that in the 1970's and  '80's, the

          5  City of New York sold off much of the property it

          6  owned, a lot of it at auction and a lot of it for

          7  below rate, that now house the monstrosities and

          8  really irrational development that's plaguing us in

          9  Staten Island.

         10                 So, it's interesting to hear that in

         11  this instance, the City actually got it right, for

         12  once, and bought property in the  '70's and held

         13  onto it and now it's going to be the home of

         14  schools.  So, I guess it was that time of the day,

         15  where the broken clock gets it right and we should

         16  be fair and note that once in a blue moon when the

         17  City and City Government gets it right.  So, they

         18  got one thing right in the  '70's.  I guess they got

         19  that going for them.  Thank you Mr. Chairman for my

         20  rant.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Does

         22  anyone else have any comments?  I just want to

         23  again, not again, introduce Council Member Diana

         24  Reyna, who joined us and I think we're ready to vote

         25  on this item.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, on both.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          5  Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Aye on both.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Palma.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at

         12  six in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         13  abstentions.  I refer to the Full Land Use

         14  Committee.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         16  Thank you very much.  We appreciate very much the

         17  School Construction Authority leaving the room to

         18  make room for other people.  We just want to mention

         19  that we are going to be voting very soon on the

         20  landmarks item.  So, all the Members that are here,

         21  please make sure to stick around.  Diane Jackier,

         22  from Landmarks Preservation Commission please.

         23                 We're going to be dealing with two

         24  landmarks, Brooklyn Community Board, L.U. Number

         25  466, Brooklyn Community Board Two, 20055435HKK,
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          2  N050389 HKK, designation was number 359, LP- 2169 by

          3  the Landmarks Preservation Commission, pursuant to

          4  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the

          5  Offerman Building, located at 503- 13 Fulton Street

          6  and 234- 48 Duffield Street, Block 145, Lot 35.

          7                 Second Item, L.U. Number 467,

          8  Brooklyn Community Board, 20055436HKK, N050390HKK,

          9  designation number was 359, LP 2170, by the

         10  Landmarks Preservation Commissioner, pursuant to

         11  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the A.

         12  I. Namm and Son Department Store, located at 450-

         13  458 Fulton Street, also known as 1- 7 Hoyt Street,

         14  Block 157, Lot nine.

         15                 Those are the two items that we are

         16  voting on and we'll be delighted to hear from the

         17  Landmarks Preservation Commission now.

         18                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning Council

         19  Members.  My name is Diane Jackier.  I'm the

         20  Director of Community and Government Affairs for the

         21  Landmarks Preservation Commission. I'm here to

         22  testify on the Commission's designation of the

         23  Offerman Building in Brooklyn as a New York City

         24  Landmark.

         25                 On November 16, 2004, the Landmarks
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          2  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          3  designation of Offerman's, eight people spoke in

          4  favor of designation, including representatives of

          5  the Brooklyn Heights Association, the Fort Greene

          6  Association, the Metropolitan Chapter of the

          7  Victorian Society in America, the Pratt Institute

          8  Center for Community and Environmental Development,

          9  the Landmarks Conservancy, the Historic Districts

         10  Council, the Society for the Architecture of the

         11  City and the Municipal Arts Society.  The owner and

         12  representatives of the Fulton Mall Improvement

         13  Association and the Downtown Brooklyn Council asked

         14  the Commission to delay its decision.

         15                 In addition, the Commission received

         16  letters in support of designation from Borough

         17  President Marty Markowitz, City Council Member

         18  Letitia James, City Council Member David Yassky and

         19  Brooklyn Community Board Two.

         20                 On March 15, 2005, the Commission

         21  voted to designate Offerman's a New York City

         22  landmark.  An outstanding example of a commercial

         23  structure executed in the Romanesque Revival style,

         24  the Offerman building was constructed in two phases

         25  between 1890 and 1893.  Located on an L- shaped lot,
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          2  adjourning Fulton and Duffield Streets, it was

          3  commissioned by Henry Offerman to serve as the S.

          4  Wechsler and Brother Store. Designed by Peter J.

          5  Laurtizen, a Danish immigrant, the Offerman Building

          6  incorporates multi- story arcades, textured

          7  limestone and decorative moldings.

          8                 Following the closing of the Wechsler

          9  store in 1897, the building was leased to a

         10  succession of large retail tenants.  Martin's

         11  Department Store was the best known and most

         12  successful, occupying the structure for more than 50

         13  years, from 1924 to 1979.  Fondly remembered by many

         14  residents of Brooklyn, the store specialized in

         15  men's and women's clothing.  Despite alterations to

         16  the lower floors on Fulton Street, the Offerman

         17  Building retains much of its original character and

         18  is one of the most impressive structures in downtown

         19  Brooklyn.  The Commission urges you to affirm the

         20  designation of the Offerman Building. Okay.

         21                 Good morning again, I'm Diane Jackier

         22  from the Landmarks Commission, okay, I'm here to

         23  talk about the Namm's Department Store.

         24                 On November 16th, the Landmarks

         25  Commission held a public hearing on a proposed
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          2  designation of Namm's Department Store.  Seven

          3  people spoke in favor of designation, including

          4  representatives of the Brooklyn Heights Association,

          5  the Fort Greene Association, the Pratt Institute

          6  Center for Community and Environmental Development,

          7  the Landmarks Conservancy, the Historic Districts

          8  Council, and the Municipal Arts Society.

          9  Representatives of the Fulton Mall Improvement

         10  Association and the Downtown Brooklyn Council asked

         11  the Commission to delay its decision.

         12                 In addition, the Commission received

         13  letters in support of designation from Borough

         14  President Marty Markowitz, City Council Members

         15  Letitia James and David Yassky, Brooklyn Community

         16  Board Two, and the Brooklyn Chapter of the American

         17  Institute of Architects, as well as the Boerum Hill

         18  Association. On March 15, 2005, the Commission voted

         19  to designate Namm's a New York City landmark.

         20                 A.I. Namm and Son Department Store,

         21  the surviving portion of a larger department store

         22  that once covered nearly an entire City block,

         23  remains a significant architectural and commercial

         24  feature of downtown Brooklyn.  Adolph I. Namm

         25  transferred his Manhattan upholstery and embroidery
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          2  trimmings business to Brooklyn in 1885 and opened a

          3  store at this location in 1891.  By the 1920's,

          4  Namm's was one of the largest department stores in

          5  America.

          6                 This structure, Namm's last

          7  architectural phase, was built in 1924 to 25 and

          8  1928 to 29, to the design of architects Robert D.

          9  Kohn and Charles Butler.  The highly sophisticated,

         10  elegant modern design contrasts monumental

         11  sculptural masonry piers, vertical bay windows and

         12  decorative bronze spandrel panels.  The Commission

         13  urges you to affirm the designation of the Namm's

         14  Department Store.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

         16  Koppell.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you

         18  Mr. Chairman. First of all, I want to thank you and

         19  the Committee staff for the background information

         20  on the votes.  I think you've now, this is now well

         21  entrenched as a practice and I think it makes the

         22  Hearings much more informative.  I'm curious to ask

         23  Ms. Jackier, why, in both cases, the Downtown

         24  Brooklyn Association requested a delay in this

         25  designation?
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          2                 MS. JACKIER:  At the time that the

          3  hearing took place in November, they were

          4  undertaking a planning study of Fulton Street, of

          5  the Fulton Mall, and so they asked the Commission to

          6  delay making a decision until they had had a chance

          7  to complete their study.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  And have

          9  they had a chance to complete their study?

         10                 MS. JACKIER:  They have not completed

         11  the study yet, but we had spoken to them when we

         12  wanted to move forward and vote in March and they

         13  were okay with that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  They

         15  indicated informally that they were all right?

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The other

         18  thing is that the owner of one of the projects also

         19  requested a delay, what is --

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  And it was --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- Is that

         22   --

         23                 MS. JACKIER:  -- For the same --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- A

         25  company, a man, a woman?
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          2                 MS. JACKIER:  It's, it, I can't

          3  remember --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, let's

          5  call him --

          6                 MS. JACKIER:  I think it's --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- The

          8  owner.

          9                 MS. JACKIER:  The owner.  It was for

         10  the same reason as the, as the bid had requested the

         11  delay --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But, do you

         13  know what the owner's position is now?

         14                 MS. JACKIER:  I don't know what their

         15  position is now, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, it

         17  would have been a good -- yea, tell everybody.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Identify

         19  yourself for the record please.

         20                 MR. CARR:  Good morning, Alonzo Carr,

         21  City Council Land Use Office.  Yes, I did speak to

         22  the owner, who indeed is also the Chair of the Civic

         23  Association, Mr. Lebose (phonetic), who is the owner

         24  of the Offerman Building and he did indicate that

         25  they would have preferred that Landmarks delay their
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          2  designation, but he understood that they still had

          3  to go forward with it, so, you know, he decided that

          4  he was okay with it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I see.

          6  Well, that's good to hear and I think that Landmark

          7  Commission, if I might ask, I think it's great that

          8  our staff did that.  But, I think the Landmark

          9  Commission should have had an answer to that in

         10  coming here, if I may say so.

         11                 MS. JACKIER:  Some, I have, I agree,

         12  but sometimes I don't want to mischaracterize

         13  anyone's position, so --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  No, I

         15  certainly don't think you should do that --

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  I'm happy that Alonzo

         17   --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- Either,

         19  but you can still inquire into it.

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  No, and we have.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.  Well,

         22  hearing that Mr. Chair, I would have no objection.

         23  I see everybody in the public sector is supportive

         24  of this and sounds good to me.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Chair Felder.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          4  Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes on both.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Palma.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at

         11  six in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         12  abstentions and I referred to the Full Land Use

         13  Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.  We are

         15  now going to deal with the third item, but we're

         16  going to give, you know, we're going to just give a

         17  few minutes for the people, I don't know if there

         18  are any, but if anyone took advantage of sitting in

         19  the balcony waiting for this item, I want to make

         20  sure that they know that we're going to start soon.

         21  We're recessing for two point three minutes.

         22                 (Recess taken).

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  How many?  Two

         24  point three minute delay.  All right, before we get

         25  started, let me just set the agenda for the Hearing,
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          2  so that everyone understands what we're going to try

          3  to accomplish and how we're going to accomplish it.

          4                 Today, I would like to make it clear

          5  to everyone that there is no vote taking place on

          6  the siting of these stations.  There is no vote

          7  taking place today on the siting of the stations.

          8  In our discussions with the Speaker's office, as

          9  well as my colleagues who are here, there was a

         10  consideration given to the possibility of postponing

         11  today's Hearing entirely until we get some more

         12  information.  But, we did not have enough time to

         13  notify the public of a postponement.

         14                 I want you to understand that that is

         15  why we're going to be taking all the information

         16  that you want to give us today.  The purpose of

         17  today's Hearing is to listen to you. That's today's

         18  Hearing.  Every person who wants to testify must

         19  fill out one of these forms and they are obtainable

         20  and have to be submitted to the Sergeant- at- Arms

         21  that's right near the door in the back.

         22                 In addition, you will have two

         23  minutes to speak. You will have two minutes to speak

         24  and we will be creating panels of six people and you

         25  will each have two minutes to speak, on one
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          2  condition, that you have something new to say or

          3  something new to add, because there are a lot of

          4  people in the room and we're here to listen to

          5  whatever you have to say that's new.  But, we're not

          6  going to torture all of you by having to listen to

          7  things over and over and over again.

          8                 So, when we choose the panels,

          9  they're going to be chosen randomly.  There's no, we

         10  didn't do a lotto, but all we do is we pick the

         11  first six out of the pile, other than the government

         12  or elected officials or their representatives.  So,

         13  if you see that somebody has made your point, you do

         14  have the opportunity to say, when I call your name,

         15  that you don't want to testify anymore, your point

         16  has been made.

         17                 If you're coming up to testify, I

         18  want you to be clear that the people are here to

         19  listen to you say something that was not said

         20  before.  If I interrupt you, it's not because I

         21  don't like how you're saying it, or what you're

         22  saying, but if I've heard something one time or two

         23  times or how many times, we're not going to do it

         24  again, even if I'm willing to listen to it, it's not

         25  fair and I don't think it adds anything to the
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          2  Hearing.

          3                 So, I would suggest that whoever is

          4  here listen to what people have to say before you,

          5  so that this can be a constructive and productive

          6  Hearing.  The first people that are testifying today

          7  are from the Administration and I will allow you to

          8  identify yourselves and start your testimony.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         10  Good morning Chairman Felder and Members of the Land

         11  Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting and

         12  Marine Maritime Uses.  I'm Harry Szarpanski,

         13  Assistant Commissioner for the New York City

         14  Department of Sanitation's Bureau of Long Term

         15  Exports.  I'm here today with Bob Orlin on my left.

         16  Bob is the Department's Deputy Commissioner for

         17  Legal Affairs, Walter Czwartacky to my immediate

         18  right, Walter is Director of Special Projects for

         19  the Bureau and Vaughn Arnold, also with our, on our

         20  staff.

         21            It's our pleasure to represent the

         22  Department to discuss the long- term export portion

         23  of the draft Solid Waste Management Plan as it

         24  relates to the Department's Uniform Land Use Review

         25  Procedure, ULURP applications for the three proposed
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          2  converted marine transfer stations that are the

          3  subject of today's Hearing.

          4                 The cornerstone of the new plan, the

          5  containerization of waste and the long distance

          6  export of that waste in containers by barge or rail

          7  will eliminate the City's reliance on long- haul

          8  trucks to export residential waste and represents a

          9  fundamental shift in how the City will manage

         10  municipal solid waste in the long term.

         11                 Developing four marine transfer

         12  stations that has two in Brooklyn, one in Manhattan

         13  and one in Queens, which is not the subject of

         14  today's Hearing, that's a North Shore facility, is

         15  integral to providing the City with an equitable,

         16  environmentally sound, operationally efficient and

         17  cost- effective system for managing the City's

         18  waste.  It also is an, essential to the City's

         19  achieving its all important goal of making each

         20  borough responsible for its own waste and to

         21  ensuring that neighborhoods like South Bronx,

         22  Williamsburg/Greenpoint and Jamaica, Queens do not

         23  bear the disproportionate burdens of waste transfer

         24  stations. Responsibility for the City's waste

         25  management system must be allocated equitably
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          2  throughout the City.

          3                 The marine transfer stations,

          4  historically, used to barge uncontainerized waste to

          5  Fresh Kills Landfill, will be rebuilt as state- of-

          6  the- art transfer facilities that will containerize

          7  waste on site for shipping out of the City.  Waste

          8  processing operations in the new converted

          9  facilities will occur entirely within full enclosed

         10  buildings, which, among other things, will be

         11  equipped with advanced ventilation and odor control

         12  systems.

         13                 I will now turn the microphone over

         14  to Walter Czwartacky, who will talk to you about,

         15  who will walk you through a Powerpoint presentation

         16  developed for this morning's Hearing. The

         17  presentation covers the design of the proposed

         18  marine transfer stations and provides background

         19  information on the three sites that are the subject

         20  of this Hearing.

         21                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  As Commissioner

         22  Szarpanski said, the facilities we're proposing to

         23  construct will be completely different than the

         24  existing marine transfer stations.  As this, as this

         25  slide shows, the existing transfer stations are
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          2  essentially two level shed structures.  There were

          3  explicitly designed to facilitate the dumping of

          4  waste from trucks and to open hopper barges for

          5  transport to the Fresh Kills Landfill.

          6                 They did not have, they had very

          7  limited ventilation systems, their odor control

          8  systems were really based on masking odors.  The

          9  lower levels of the facility were by and large below

         10  the flood plains in most areas and they mandated, by

         11  the way were designed, outdoor storage of open

         12  waste, which contributed significantly to odor

         13  problems and rodent problems with these facilities.

         14                 The facilities we're proposing to

         15  construct will be, as Commissioner Szarpanski said,

         16  state- of- the- art and entirely different.  They

         17  will have three levels, the highest level on the

         18  left will be the tipping floor, each tipping floor,

         19  the tipping floors have been designed to ensure that

         20  we can meet peak hour demand in terms of truck

         21  traffic.  It's one of the measures we're taking to

         22  prevent queues and stop queues.

         23                 The loading floor, which is the next

         24  level down, is the level onto which trucks will

         25  discharge waste.   On that level, we have storage
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          2  capacity, which would enable us, if there is a

          3  problem in moving waste out of the facility, to

          4  store about 700 tons, so the operation can continue

          5  uninterrupted without causing queues back down the

          6  ramp and out of the facility.

          7                 From the loading level, the waste is

          8  pushed to the right through a little hole in the

          9  floor, where it would be loaded into a container.

         10  The containers are made of steel, they measure 12 by

         11  eight and a half, by 20.  They are designed for

         12  waste management purposes.  They are being used

         13  quite, throughout the industry and once loaded they

         14  will carry about, between 20 and 22 tons.  They

         15  would move further to the right, to an area where a

         16  lid would be put on.  The lid would be sealed and

         17  the, essentially, the container is leak- proof in

         18  that regard.

         19                 It would then go out a door and be

         20  lifted up by a crane and placed onto a barge.  The

         21  upper level or mezzanine level there would house all

         22  of our ventilation equipment.  That equipment is

         23  designed to maintain what's called negative air

         24  pressure within the building.  Whenever a door is

         25  open, air will come in, odors will not go out.  The
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          2  odor management system here is based on odor

          3  neutralization.  Any air we exhaust will be treated

          4  before it's exhaust with an aerosol that will

          5  neutralize odors.  It's being used in several

          6  transfer stations in New Jersey and other locations.

          7                 So, I should add -- could we go back

          8  one? -- The tipping floors at the MTSs, by and

          9  large, were sufficient to handle peak hour demand,

         10  except at two locations.  One of those is Southwest,

         11  which only had half the amount of space and the

         12  other was 91st Street, which because of its

         13  rhomboidal shape, only had four dumping slots, as

         14  opposed to six.

         15                 Additionally, these older facilities

         16  had scales where there needed to be an exchange of

         17  paper.  Transaction could take 60 seconds to a

         18  minute and a half, which could cause queuing.  Also,

         19  the ramps at most of these older facilities, all of

         20  these older facilities that are under consideration

         21  for replacement now, could not accommodate trucks in

         22  a queue.  So, any queuing we had to do, was done on

         23  the street.

         24                 I'll now go through the three sites

         25  that are under consideration today.  Oh, I'm sorry,
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          2  this is a picture from above of a model we had made

          3  to sort of study the spacial relationships of the

          4  design.  The area on the right is the tipping floor,

          5  where the trucks will move and maneuver to dump.

          6  The loading floor is below.  The four slots I

          7  mentioned is where the waste would be pushed through

          8  to go into the containers, and then it would move to

          9  the area on the far left, where it would be lidded

         10  and then out of the building and onto the barges.

         11                 Go ahead.  The first site I'm going

         12  to cover is Southwest Brooklyn.  It's in Community

         13  Board, Community District 11.  It's zoned M31.  The

         14  site is adjacent to Gravesend Bay and bounded by Bay

         15  41st Street and 25th Avenue.

         16                 Next slide.  The proposed facility

         17  will be built on the site of an old incinerator,

         18  which is now being demolished. The facility will

         19  replace the MTS that's in the upper left- hand

         20  corner.  That MTS opened in 1960 and ceased

         21  operation in October of 2000.

         22                 We anticipate this facility handling

         23  about 950 tons a day of DSNY material that would

         24  come from Brooklyn Districts 11 through 13 and

         25  Brooklyn District 15, and about 720 or so tons of
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          2  commercial waste, and that commercial waste number

          3  was derived in accordance with environmental review

          4  of what impacts would be caused by truck traffic to

          5  the site.  This facility actually has the capacity

          6  to handle more than that, but when we ran the

          7  environmental review of truck deliveries, we cut it

          8  off because of noise and other impacts at a 700

          9  number.

         10                 Next slide.  The access and egress to

         11  the site is, would, are the roads noted.  We

         12  anticipate DSNY trucks would be about 100 trucks a

         13  day and that the peak hour number of trucks would be

         14  20 DSNY trucks.  Operations on the site -- next

         15  slide -- this slide shows the potential for queuing

         16  on the ramp.  We don't expect that to happen, we

         17  just wanted to illustrate that should it occur, we

         18  could back 16 trucks onto this ramp before having to

         19  hit any street.

         20                 The next slide.  This is a rendering

         21  of the proposed facility taken from the, I think

         22  it's the, the south, from the Marine Basin Marina.

         23  The next site is Hamilton Avenue. Hamilton Avenue,

         24  the proposed Hamilton Avenue site is in Brooklyn

         25  Seven, it's zoned M31.  It's adjacent to Gowanus
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          2  Canal and Hamilton Avenue.

          3                 Next slide.  The facility, the

          4  position of the facility on the site would be

          5  partially on what is an old incinerator, which is to

          6  be demolished and on top of the old MTS, which will

          7  be removed.  The Hamilton Avenue facility opened up

          8  in 1986, the existing facility, and ceased operation

          9  in nine, 2000, when we started exporting by trucks

         10  from this waste shed.

         11                 Back.  We anticipate that this

         12  facility will handle about 1,900 tons a day of DSNY

         13  waste that will come from Brooklyn Two, Brooklyn Six

         14  through Ten, Brooklyn 14 and Brooklyn 16 through 18.

         15    We also, based on our commercial waste study and

         16  the environmental reviews done, are suggesting this

         17  facility could be permitted to receive up to 1,200

         18  tons a night of commercial waste.

         19                 The next slide.  The routes into and

         20  out of the facility are illustrated here.  DSNY

         21  trucks, we expect, will be about 200 a day, with the

         22  peak hour being 29 trucks.

         23                 Next slide.  This slide illustrates

         24  the potential queue space available and operations

         25  that would take place.  We can fit ten trucks on the
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          2  ramp and six trucks in the building.

          3                 Finally, the last, next slide.  This

          4  is a rendering of that facility from, I guess, under

          5  the Gowanus.  If you were looking across, that's

          6  the, to the right is the City's DOT asphalt plant.

          7                 Next slide.  The East 91st Street

          8  marine transfer station would be in Manhattan

          9  Community District Eight.  It's in an M14 zone.  We

         10  have designed this facility as all the rest.  It

         11  meets the performance standards associated with this

         12  type of use in an M41 zone.  It's -- please, next

         13  slide, it, as you can see, will be to the north of

         14  the existing MTS, which opened in 1940 and operated

         15  until January of 2000, over 60 years.

         16                 It's similar to the design we

         17  mentioned before. It's the same as the design we

         18  mentioned before.  We envision this facility

         19  handling about 720 tons a day of DSNY material,

         20  which would come from Manhattan Five, Six, Eight and

         21  11.  We also, on the off shift, would open the doors

         22  to about 780 tons of commercial waste.

         23                 Next slide.  The traffic patterns and

         24  access and egress routes within the vicinity of the

         25  facility, as shown on this map, DSNY trucks would be
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          2  about 75 a day, peak hour, we envision 21.  Next

          3  slide.  This slide shows that the ramp could hold 19

          4  trucks.  We anticipate the average queue here would

          5  be less than that considerably, one or so, which is

          6  based on a highway traffic manual analysis and the

          7  process and capacity of the tip floor.

          8                 Finally, the rendering, this is a

          9  rendering from above.  The structures there are a

         10  part of Asphalt Green, that's the Aqua Center on the

         11  left and the playing field is below.  I should

         12  mention that those facilities, the playing field,

         13  were renovated into a recreation facility in 1982

         14  and the Aqua Center was actually built in 1994.

         15                 Major complaint from the community

         16  about this facility when it operated previously was

         17  queues of collection trucks down York Avenue and we

         18  do not deny that that, in fact, did occur.  We feel,

         19  however, that the worst instances of that were

         20  associated with the fact that during the rehab of

         21  the facility that took place in the  '80's, we

         22  reduced the ramp to one way, which constrained its

         23  capacity terribly and then during the construction

         24  of the Aqua Center, we had to do the same thing sort

         25  of for the foundation of that facility.
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          2                 So, the worst situations, we think,

          3  were attributable to that.  Nonetheless, there were

          4  queues at this facility because the ramp of the

          5  existing facility couldn't handle queues and the

          6  tipping floor only could handle four truck or only

          7  had four slots.  We've addressed all of those issues

          8  with this particular design.  Harry.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         10  To conclude, incorporating containerized operations

         11  as part of the marine transfer system infrastructure

         12  will result in a number of benefits for the City.

         13  The foremost of these are that it will allocate the

         14  responsibility for managing the City's solid waste

         15  in a more equitable manner and avoid the negative

         16  environmental consequences of exporting waste out of

         17  the City in long haul refuse trucks.

         18                 We will continue to work with the

         19  elected officials, community groups and

         20  environmental advocates on implementing this plan to

         21  ensure that it is considerate and respectful of

         22  community needs.  We would now be happy to answer

         23  the Committee's questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

         25  Domenic Recchia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes.  Good

          3  afternoon. You said that on the Southwest

          4  incinerator, that the commercial is 700 tons.  Did

          5  you lower that?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

          7  Yes we did.

          8                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Yes, we, we, in, in

          9  response to comments made during the review of the

         10  DEIS in the analysis we did, we had to bring the

         11  number down.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  And, but did

         13  you increase the municipal garbage?

         14                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  No, we did not.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         16  No.

         17                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  It's the same

         18  numbers.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  It's the

         20  same.  Is there any other location that you can move

         21  this transfer station?  Why is it here?  Why can't

         22  you put it in another part of Brooklyn? Because it's

         23  too long, you know, we had this problem with the

         24  community with the smoke stack, where it burned.  My

         25  whole thing is with this piece of property, you
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          2  know, you're going through the ULURP process, why

          3  can't you find another location for it?

          4                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We, we, the origin

          5  of this particular plan is, 2002, after the Mayor

          6  assessed what we adopted and were pursuing in 2000

          7  and realizes we're not moving, and then he assesses

          8  the alternatives that were in the EIS for that plan

          9  and finds nothing reasonable and sends us out to

         10  replace the exiting MTSs, to say that it's best we

         11  move forward on sites that we already own and

         12  control and make our garbage more easily exportable

         13  by putting it into containers.

         14                 Our assessment of alternatives was an

         15  alternative to that system overall.  And, because we

         16  did that assessed and where you'll notice that we're

         17  pursuing four MTSs, not eight, we did find

         18  alternatives in the Bronx.  We did find alternatives

         19  for a portion of Queens.  We did find alternatives

         20  for a portion of Brooklyn and we did find

         21  alternatives for the west side of Manhattan.

         22                 There was no apparent already

         23  alternative to the development of a replacement MTS

         24  at the Southwest site.  We're cognizant that the

         25  incinerator, when it did operate, was not a good
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          2  neighbor at all.  It's been shut down for about 15

          3  years and, in fact, is not there anymore.  So, we

          4  think that -- and I would just finally say, as you

          5  just noticed, we did do the appropriate

          6  environmental work.  We did do due diligence and we

          7  do believe that this facility would be a good

          8  neighbor.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  By lowering

         10  it down to 700 tons of commercial garbage, how much

         11  less of vehicles, trucks?

         12                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  You can generally

         13  consider commercial corridors to handle about 12

         14  tons a truck.  So, it's 60 or so trucks, in that

         15  neighborhood.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  60?

         17                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  60, I would say that

         18  that would be the total commercial waste trucks over

         19  the period that we would receive commercial waste.

         20  And, 70 is the number we're posting for, well, it's

         21  actually higher than that, it's 100 we're posting

         22  for DSNY.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.

         24                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Now, I would just

         25  say, Councilman, that the numbers we've presented
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          2  here are the design numbers.  The numbers we used in

          3  the EIS were always higher and more conservative, so

          4  as to give us a better and safer prediction of

          5  environmental impact.  So, if you go back and you

          6  say, well, they said 60 trucks, why did they analyze

          7  this in the DEIS, it was to add that level of

          8  conservatism to make sure that the analysis was

          9  reasonable and fair and safe.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  By bringing

         11  it down to 700 tons, that reduces the number of

         12  trucks, correct?

         13                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Yes, it will reduce

         14  the number of commercialized trucks.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  My last

         16  comments, I really think that we have to really look

         17  into alternative ways of dealing with the garbage

         18  and a bigger push for the recycling issue.

         19                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  When you vote on the

         20  Solid Waste Management Plan as a whole, you will

         21  find it includes components for that, a new

         22  technology study, and we are doing significant

         23  things in the area of recycling with Huge Neu and

         24  its ability to allow us, you know, to test new

         25  materials and stabilize our cost.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

          4  Barron, you wanted to vote on the landmark and

          5  school issues.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Yes, I'd like

          7  to vote aye on all items on landmark and school

          8  issues and ask a question. Sorry.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That, you'll

         10  have to wait for.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  What if I

         12  just refuse to?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  To wait?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Wait, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'll knock you

         16  down and pummel you to ground.  Council Member Sara

         17  Gonzalez please.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Thank you

         19  Chairman.  I have a question with the Hamilton MTS

         20  and I know that we've met many, many times, and I do

         21  want to thank the Administration for all the

         22  forthcoming information that was given to myself and

         23  my office.  I clearly understand that it is the

         24  responsibility of the entire City to manage the

         25  waste.  I understand that.  But, in understanding
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          2  that, besides the efficiency of that MTS, which is

          3  really important to our district and to the entire

          4  City, I also want to ensure that there's equity.  My

          5  MTS, the way it looks to me and maybe you can either

          6  clarify, the tonnage is extremely high.  That's my

          7  concern.

          8                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Your Community Board

          9  asked the same question.  The Commission asked us

         10  the same question.  The waste sheds that we planned

         11  around are the waste sheds that have existed for

         12  well over 25 years.  Those waste sheds were defined

         13  based on productivity of the collection forces,

         14  travel times, the capacity of the streets close in

         15  to the facilities, their ability to handle traffic.

         16  We did not look at new and different waste sheds at

         17  this time and even though there is, between

         18  Southwest and Hamilton, a significant difference,

         19  the FEIS document bears out that there is no

         20  significant impact at either facility.

         21                 We advised the Community Board that

         22  at this point we thought, based on our, you know,

         23  tradition and history of operating in this array and

         24  the FEIS results, that we didn't see a need for a

         25  change.  We are not adverse to revisiting that issue
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          2  at some point in the future.  But, for the purposes

          3  of this plan, we've proposed this and want to pursue

          4  this and adjust later, if we adjust, or it proves

          5  necessary to do so.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay, well,

          7  as far as I'm concerned, like I said earlier, I do

          8  believe it's the responsibility of the entire City.

          9  But, we do need to revisit it because the tonnage is

         10  high, my constituents in my community are very

         11  concerned about it, and it is my responsibility to

         12  say so today.

         13                 So, therefore, I understand and I

         14  know we spoke about the amount of people that live

         15  within Brooklyn.  I believe we spoke about that.  I

         16  still cannot understand and I want to say on the

         17  record, that because of influx of immigration, which

         18  our country opens its doors, as a City, we should

         19  balance the responsibility, and I understand that a

         20  lot of people live in Brooklyn and specifically in

         21  my district, but it is important that you please

         22  revisit.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can I just ask

         24  one question please about what Council Member

         25  Gonzalez said, is in terms of the trucks.  She has
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          2  on her site 1,900 and at the same time, it sounded

          3  to me, when you were doing the presentation, that in

          4  terms of the trucks backing up, she had the least

          5  amount that could be handled.  Was that true or not?

          6                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  The queue space

          7  available --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Compared to the

          9  others.

         10                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  The queue space,

         11  emergency queue space is what I call it, available

         12  at her facility is less than at the others.  It's a

         13  function of the size of the site and our ability to

         14  build things on it.  But, the queue space is large

         15  enough, given the projected average and maximum

         16  queues, to accommodate what should go on there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yeah, I still

         18  think, Council Member Gonzalez, that besides the

         19  other issue that you mentioned, to me, it's somewhat

         20  disturbing, you know, the issue about them backing

         21  up the trucks.  If the other places that some of

         22  them have about half of the tonnage and there's more

         23  room for the trucks, you're getting double the

         24  tonnage with half the space for the trucks.  I don't

         25  know if something can be done about it.
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          2                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  As I said, when we

          3  ran the, the environmental analyses of both sites

          4  and when we operated in this way, the, there were no

          5  significant impacts and there were no, well, there

          6  were queues in Hamilton, which was a function of the

          7  ramp's inability to accommodate any trucks.  But, as

          8  I said, the FEIS demonstrates that this is not going

          9  to cause any unmitigateable (sic) significant

         10  impacts, and we could move forward this way and it,

         11  it's, the, it's a, the choke points that exist

         12  proximate to the facility that suggest how much we

         13  could really move to it and there are less at

         14  Hamilton.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Yeah, I

         16  just want to say, go back a little, when you spoke

         17  about the waste sheds. Could you just clarify that a

         18  little bit for me please.

         19                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Waste sheds are the

         20  number of community districts assigned to a transfer

         21  site or a disposal facility.  That's the definition

         22  of a waste shed.  The waste sheds that exist in

         23  Brooklyn were designed or reflect are, you know,

         24  travel times to and from the site, the capacity of

         25  the site, the amount of waste in the location,
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          2  distances to the garage and so on, and are all, and,

          3  of course, the environmental aspects that we don't

          4  want to send more waste to a site than that site

          5  could, in an environmental basis, handle.  The waste

          6  sheds, we started with the waste sheds that were,

          7  because they were working and we made the

          8  destinations better.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  I just want

         10  to say that I clearly understand what retrofitting

         11  means and, I mean, we went back and forth with this

         12  for many, many months and you had the answers, you

         13  responded to the questions and I thank you for that.

         14  It's, again, if we can just sit and talk about the

         15  tonnage to some extent, I would appreciate that.

         16                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We will do that, I'm

         17  sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Council Member

         20  Brewer. Again, I just want clarify my own feelings

         21  about, you know, issues in general.  You said

         22  significant impact.  Sometimes I do listen, and I

         23  listen very carefully, when you say significant

         24  impact, that means an impact, but not a significant

         25  one.  So, I'm not saying there's a problem.  I'm not
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          2  saying there's some sort of conspiracy or anything

          3  like that, but I still think that my colleague,

          4  Council Member Gonzalez, when you do revisit the

          5  issue of the tonnage, I think that you must revisit

          6  the issue of the trucks, you know, backing up,

          7  especially because even if you reduce the tonnage,

          8  you still have a way to go before you're anywhere

          9  near the tonnage that's at the other facilities and

         10  you've put a lot of space, which is a good thing.

         11  So, I would appreciate your revisiting that as well.

         12    Yeah, sure, it's your.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Absolutely.

         14    I just want to say thank you.  First of all, I

         15  clearly understand that.  My concern again is,

         16  because it seems like so much, when you're not an

         17  expert, I am not an expert in this area, so,

         18  therefore, I go to the experts.  And I want to

         19  understand if it's so high, what do I say to my

         20  community, and this is what the community board is

         21  facing as well in the trucks.  The trucks are a big

         22  issue as well.  But, I again, it's been explained

         23  thoroughly, I just need some further answers and I

         24  think my community certainly deserves it and I thank

         25  you.
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          2                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We agree.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.  I

          4  also thank you for all your many briefings.  I think

          5  you could write a book on them.  But, my question is

          6  this, obviously I represent West 59th Street and

          7  that MTS is not discussed.  I know you could forgive

          8  my speel (phonetic).  But, my question is, in that

          9  it's not mentioned here, the proposal from your side

         10  is for commercial, but say, for instance, East 91st

         11  Street does not go forward, which is a possibility

         12  given all the factors, then would 59th Street be

         13  used for residential?  What happens to the

         14  commercial and to the many individuals here who are

         15  from Brooklyn and concerned?  If Gansevoort doesn't

         16  go forward, what happens to 59th Street, would it be

         17  used for recyclables or for commercial?

         18                 You know, I have a long list here.

         19  So, I'm wondering how does this fit if East 91st

         20  Street and Gansevoort are not going forward now?

         21  Because 91st Street is not going to happen.  I think

         22  something is in the cards.  Go ahead, let's see what

         23  happens.  I, just, that's what I think.

         24                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We don't regard in

         25  our criteria or our formula for defining a fair and
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          2  equitable plan, we don't regard 59th Street as

          3  replacing 91st Street and producing a fair and

          4  equitable solution.  The way the plan is proposed

          5  now, we will create about 780 tons a day of

          6  commercial capacity at 91st Street and the potential

          7  for 2,000 more at 59th Street.  If we were to shift

          8  from 91st to 59th, we would create less than half

          9  that amount of commercial capacity --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Like 500 or?

         11                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Well, it would be, I

         12  mean, you would have the 2,000 ton a day facility,

         13  you would have 700 tons a day of DSNY waste going in

         14  there and perhaps the remainder could be commercial

         15  waste.  Another problem with the 59th Street option

         16  is that the facility site, the site there, it's the

         17  configuration of the site, would enable us to build

         18  a facility that could handle the daily needs, but it

         19  would not be as robust. It would not have as much

         20  internal redundancy, and anything that went wrong

         21  would mean we'd have to start re- routing waste to

         22  some place else and that some place else, without

         23  another facility in Manhattan, is going to be the

         24  Bronx, Brooklyn or Queens.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Similarly, similarly

          3   -- and I'm talking about DSNY waste in that regard.

          4    Similarly, if something goes wrong on a Hudson

          5  River crossing for a few hours and we have to re-

          6  route trucks, there's not going to be room at a

          7  facility at 59th Street to accommodate it.  It's

          8  going to have to go some place else.  And, as I said

          9  before, there's nothing in Manhattan, where's it

         10  going to go?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  What I'm

         12  saying is plan B would make sense for Manhattan

         13  because, obviously, 59th Street, we're willing to

         14  take our fair share, but not more, and if there

         15  isn't any other facility that's moving forward, say,

         16  for instance, I just want to be clear and on the

         17  record, that we don't want to get dumped with

         18  everything at 59th Street.  We're willing to take

         19  our fair share, but not more.  So, plan B in

         20  Manhattan is something we should all be thinking

         21  about, so that Brooklyn doesn't get dumped on, the

         22  Bronx doesn't get dumped on and everybody's got a

         23  fair share.

         24                 MR. ORLIN:  Well, that's exactly why

         25  we think 59th Street for commercial waste is so
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          2  critical.  42 percent of commercial waste in the

          3  City is generated in Manhattan, much of it near 59th

          4  Street.  We think 59th Street is critical for

          5  handling commercial waste and, you know, we are

          6  ready to push for the plan as it is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know.  I'm

          8  just, I'm giving some reality, because that's what I

          9  do and I'm trying to make it clear that everybody

         10  heard that there is some shifts, would be my guess,

         11  and that we should be thinking about how the plan

         12  comprehensively for Manhattan.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         14  very much Mr. Chair.  I guess I wanted to ask

         15  questions in the same line of Council Member Brewer.

         16    First of all, you know, we've been fighting

         17  environmental racism for a long time.  We cannot

         18  tolerate any more in Brooklyn and communities of

         19  color.  So, it's high time, it's time that we've

         20  been more equitable in distributing some of the

         21  waste transfer station in other communities.

         22                 I think it would be sad for this

         23  Council if because this is a mayoral election year

         24  and then we begin to start making -- Mr. Chair, I

         25  noticed you didn't stop them from laughing for you.
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          2  That's fair.  So, if you think I say something you

          3  like, just laugh instead of cheering.  But, on the

          4  real side, you know, this waste management plan is

          5  critical for this City as it relates to the air that

          6  our children have to breathe in and other

          7  environmental factors and it's just sad that

          8  politics gets in the way of everything.  91st

          9  Street, you know, people have to pay their fair

         10  share, you know, we've done it for countless years,

         11  where it was in our communities.

         12                 Now that this is a mayoral political

         13  year, all of sudden, you know, certain areas want to

         14  be taken off the map and I hope this doesn't come

         15  between a battle between Bloomberg and Miller around

         16  Mayor, instead of what is environmental sound for

         17  our communities.  So, I just wanted to put my little

         18  two cents in and say that we should keep on track

         19  with making this an environmental plan that's more

         20  equitably distributed to the entire communities of

         21  New York City.

         22                 I agree with Council Member Domenic

         23  Recchia, that we definitely need to increase on

         24  recycling.  You know, it seems like we have a warped

         25  prioritization of how money is spent, you know, I

                                                            61

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  know it's capital money, but we find money for Nets

          3  and Jets and Nascar and all of that.  But, when we

          4  come to serious issues like recycling, we have a

          5  real money problem.  So, I just wanted to say that.

          6  Mr. Chair, thank you very much.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

          8  Did I understand correctly, and if I didn't, please

          9  correct me, that you said in considering these

         10  transfer stations, you only considered the sites

         11  where existing transfer stations now are located,

         12  ones that used to be operational?  Did you say that?

         13                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We, we were tasked

         14  to develop a plan that replaced existing facilities

         15  with new, state- of- the- art facilities.  However,

         16  I might add, as part of the commercial waste

         17  management study, we did look at alternate locations

         18  in Manhattan and did not find any that were better

         19  than the sites we're proposing and the procedures

         20  we're proposing.

         21                 I would also add that this plan did

         22  not spring from zero, that there is a history of

         23  plan and EIS work and alternatives that were

         24  examined from 2000 through 2001 to now. So, winding

         25  up at the existing MTS sites was after consideration
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          2  of a whole bunch of alternative options,

          3  arrangements and methodologies.  Finally, I'll add,

          4  that initially we started pursuing eight facilities

          5  and are now pursuing only four.  So, we did consider

          6   --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But I

          8  wasn't, my --

          9                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We did consider

         10  alternatives in system.  We did consider alternative

         11  approaches.  We did review alternative sites in

         12  Manhattan and this is where we wound up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But, I

         14  wasn't limiting myself to Manhattan.  Did you

         15  consider alternative site in the Bronx and Brooklyn?

         16                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  In the Bronx we

         17  consider alternative approaches and decided against

         18  doing the MTS and are going to pursue private

         19  contracts with existing vendors who will

         20  containerize and export the waste by rail.

         21                 In Brooklyn we considered other

         22  approaches and are going to do private contracts

         23  with one or two vendors who will containerize the

         24  waste and export by rail instead of converting or

         25  replacing the Greenpoint facility.
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          2                 A similar situation applies to a

          3  portion of Queens, where we found that it would be

          4  easier to achieve the goal by contracting with a

          5  private vendor for long term to containerize the

          6  waste and rail export it.  That also contributed to

          7  the decision not to pursue a facility at the

          8  Greenpoint site in Brooklyn.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, then,

         10  you did consider, you did an EIS on this, right?

         11                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Yes.  Yes, there --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Can we get a

         13  copy?  Can we get a copy of it?

         14                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Well, I will see

         15  that we get you the, it's available right now on our

         16  website, if you want to --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, fine.

         18                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- Go there and we

         19  can get it to you on disk --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Fine.

         21                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- If you'd like it

         22  there.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Fine, fine.

         24  If you give my office, you don't need to give it to

         25  me now, the website address, we can look at it on
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          2  the website.

          3                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  We don't

          5  need to get a hard copy.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I can give

          7  you the website, do you want the website.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, fine,

          9  somebody give me the website.  Let's look at

         10  Manhattan for a moment though, because it is of some

         11  interest to me.  In Manhattan, did you say you

         12  looked at other sites and you didn't find any

         13  appropriate ones?  Is that what you said?

         14                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We did not find any

         15  that were superior to the site that we are pursuing.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Did you find

         17  any that were equivalent?

         18                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  No.  Not really.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, the best

         20  site, forgetting for a moment, since you're

         21  rebuilding all these garages anyway, I hope, MTSs

         22  anyway, it seems to me that the fact that there's an

         23  existing site there makes it certainly, in some

         24  sense, more convenient.  But, it doesn't necessarily

         25  command that you use the existing site, because
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          2  you're building whole new buildings.  So, therefore,

          3  I would like to know whether in Manhattan you

          4  considered other sites besides the 91st Street site?

          5                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We, we, do you want

          6  to read that, why don't you read that.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

          8  Some of the other sites we looked at in Manhattan

          9  were the West 140th Street site between the North

         10  River Water Pollution Control Plant and the Hudson

         11  River and the Henry Hudson Parkway.  We looked at

         12  Pier 42 on the East River.  We looked at West 30th

         13  Street and we also looked at West 13th Street, which

         14  is the Gansevoort site, which, in fact, we did

         15  recommend for use as a recycling facility.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, you're

         17  going to, is there anything there now at Gansevoort?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         19  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  What is

         21  there now?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         23  Well, we have a garage there.  We're using that

         24  facility as temporary swing space while we're

         25  reconstructing another garage.  The old, and a salt
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          2  pile.  The old marine transfer station that once

          3  operated and an old incinerator are on that site.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  There is a

          5  transfer station there, an old transfer station you

          6  say?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

          8  We used to operate a transfer station there, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But, you're

         10  not going to have one there now?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         12  Well, we're recommending --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Your

         14  proposal is not to have one there now.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         16  We're not, the proposed action right now is not to

         17  use it as converted marine transfer station.  We

         18  are, though, proposing to use it for recyclable

         19  materials that will be transferred from there to

         20  other facilities and as a recycling education

         21  center.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Could it be

         23  an MTS? Could it be an MTS?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         25  It's not as good a site as the others that we are
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          2  recommending.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Right, let

          4  me just say, I guess the Chair's in the corner.  I

          5  haven't made up my mind how to vote on this, but,

          6  and I guess we're all pretty well acquainted with

          7  sites, although I cannot say I'm fully acquainted

          8  with the Brooklyn sites and I'm really not going to

          9  comment on that.  But, I personally believe, Mr.

         10  Chairman, and yes, there's a political component to

         11  this, I'm perfectly willing to acknowledge that.

         12  We'd be crazy not to.  But, I personally believe

         13  that the 91st Street site, although historically it

         14  was an MTS, I know that, is not an appropriate site.

         15    You know, if it had to be used, sure, it could be

         16  used.  I personally believe that it is not an

         17  appropriate site.

         18                 I'm not saying that I'm going to

         19  necessarily in the end vote against it, but I'm

         20  interested to hear the comments here and I'm not

         21  overly impressed with the consideration that was

         22  given to other sites in Manhattan.  I'm not even

         23  saying where. I'm just saying that there's a been a

         24  lot happening in the area of the 91st Street site

         25  since the old marine transfer station that was there
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          2  was built, some of it while it was still operating,

          3  some of it even since it was operating. I don't

          4  think it's an appropriate site.

          5                 If there's no other alternative and

          6  that's the only way we can deal with the problem, I

          7  suppose I might vote for it.  But, just to give you

          8  information and publicly make information that I do

          9  not believe it is an appropriate site.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Am I, but I

         12  have a question, so.  We lost our Chair.  I'm taking

         13  it from the Chair?

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  You're on the list,

         15  but you're not next.  McMahon is next.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  So, I've just

         17  been promoted to Chair.  So, McMahon, I guess you're

         18  next.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         20  and I think I dove tail very well into the comments

         21  made by Council Member Koppell.  I'm very concerned

         22  about the discussion here now this afternoon and the

         23  presentation as well, because there's so much that

         24  you haven't said, and you haven't told my colleagues

         25  who have to decide on these land use issues so many
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          2  more aspects of the plan.  So, let me ask you this,

          3  why are you asking the Council to consider land use

          4  questions before the 20- year plan is finalized?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

          6  Councilman McMahon, we did submit to you a draft

          7  Solid Waste Management Plan back in October.  You

          8  could not act on it until we submitted an EIS and

          9  now that you have the EIS --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Which we

         11  received, which we received.  We received the final

         12  EIS April 1st.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         14  Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You want the

         16  City Council, now that we've received the final EIS

         17  a little over a month ago, to make decisions that

         18  will have positive and negative impacts on New

         19  Yorkers, eight million people, for 20 years.  And,

         20  you're here four weeks later presenting land use

         21  questions to the Land Use Committee without a full

         22  presentation of the plan, without including 59th

         23  Street, without including Gansevoort and you want

         24  them now to make a vote, in effect, on the plan.

         25                 This is a back door attempt to bring
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          2  in some of these facilities on line before the whole

          3  plan is put into place. Where is 59th Street?  Why

          4  is 59th Street not being presented? An integral part

          5  of the plan, all those people in the yellow shirts

          6  back there believe that they're going to get

          7  immediate relief from this plan and they're not

          8  going to get it until 59th Street goes on line.  Why

          9  is 59th Street not part of the package that's

         10  brought to us right now?

         11                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Councilman, the, the

         12  DEIS and FEIS for these ULURP actions, which

         13  accompanied them through the community board

         14  process, through the City Planning process, more, in

         15  fact, it's the same DEIS and FEIS that's been

         16  prepared for the Solid Waste Management Plan that is

         17  now under consideration by the Council.  So, every

         18  community board and, who has reviewed these ULURP

         19  applications, has had an opportunity and has seen

         20  these items presented within the context of the

         21  entire Solid Waste Management Plan.  Second --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I don't

         23  think so.  I don't think so.

         24                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- I --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Let me
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          2  interrupt, I hate to, but let me tell you right now,

          3  you told my colleagues who are sitting here that

          4  this is borough- based sufficiency and every borough

          5  is going to take care of its own.  I would imagine

          6  sitting here that if I vote for 91st Street,

          7  Manhattan's done, it's taken care of its problem.

          8  Did you tell them that 1,500 tons a day are going to

          9  be driven through the tunnels and the bridges to New

         10  Jersey to be incinerated?  You didn't mention that

         11  here.

         12                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  At this Hearing I

         13  did not mention that --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Why not?

         15  Isn't that an integral part to decide?  You're

         16  asking people to decide the pieces without seeing

         17  the puzzle.

         18                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  I apologize for not

         19  mentioning the west side of Manhattan.  I did

         20  mention that we found an alternative for the west

         21  side of Manhattan and I agree, I should have

         22  elaborated that that was the alternative we had

         23  found.  I do not think that voting on these ULURPs,

         24  you know, pre- adopts the plan or ties the Council

         25  into approving the plan.  These ULURPs are for land
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          2  use actions that site facilities that are elements

          3  of the plan and --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  You've been

          5  around long enough --

          6                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- Without the plan

          7  we can't build these facilities.  You are aware of

          8  that and I'm aware of that.  The State won't permit

          9  these facilities if they're outside of the Solid

         10  Waste Management Plan we're proposing to get

         11  adopted.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, you've

         13  got the public now, you've got people for and

         14  against, fighting each other without understanding

         15  that the votes in here are not realistically

         16  connected to the plan.  You want people to vote --

         17  the reason that you have, the reason the State

         18  created Solid Waste Management Plans is so that

         19  things would be considered comprehensively.  One of

         20  the authors of it is sitting over there, he can tell

         21  you, so that there would be a comprehensive totality

         22  of the circumstances' approaches to the way these

         23  things would be done.

         24                 Now, you're sneaking into the Council

         25  with these land use actions, asking to be voted on
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          2  individually, community by community, without

          3  presenting the whole plan.  I think that's absurd.

          4  I think it's ridiculous to bring these before the

          5  Council without including the rest of the plan.

          6                 MR. ORLIN:  Councilman, let me

          7  respond.  First, as you know, there are two separate

          8  processes.  There's a ULURP process, which has,

          9  charter mandated, which has certain time schedules.

         10  That process began --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Which, the

         12  clock which you started to get these in here before

         13  we could finish our work on the 20- year plan, since

         14  you only gave us the final documents a month ago.

         15                 MR. ORLIN:  Let me finish, thank you.

         16  The SWMP is something the Council can control.  By

         17  voting on the ULURPs, that's just one approval.  But

         18  still, the Solid Waste Management Plan needs to be

         19  approved by the Council.  So, there will be a full

         20  Council debate on the whole merits of the entire

         21  plan.  What --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Come on

         23  Robert, that's after we've voted up or down on this

         24  and the public perception will be that we approved

         25  it or disapproved it.  That is disingenuous at best.
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          2                 MR. ORLIN:  I would disagree with

          3  that --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:

          5  Disingenuous.

          6                 MR. ORLIN:  -- With all due respect.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, isn't

          8  it correct that the last two times Solid Waste

          9  Management Plans were adopted by this Council, the

         10  ULURPs were done after the Solid Waste Management

         11  Plans were adopted?  Isn't that correct?  Isn't it

         12  also correct that you gave us --

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         14  That's not correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  It is

         16  correct.  Isn't is also -- you want to get the Land

         17  Use people in here to testify on it from City

         18  Council?  Because they looked up the records today.

         19  Isn't it also correct that you gave us the initial

         20  draft SWMP in October and in the first week of

         21  November you filed the ULURPs for these facilities

         22  without any public input on them at all?

         23                 These facilities were deemed done

         24  deals before you had any public hearings on your

         25  plan, before you heard from the City Council.  You
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          2  did not listen to the people.  You had this

          3  premeditated plan to put this through and now you've

          4  got Council Members fighting community against

          5  community, environmental justice against

          6  environmental reality, shame on you.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

          8  First, let me just say, I think --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm going to ask

         10  the Sergeant- at- Arms to please escort anyone that

         11  can't abide by the rules out into the next room to

         12  the Education Hearing.

         13                 MR. ORLIN:  I think, I think you're

         14  underestimating the knowledge of the public here and

         15  also let me just say there would be immediate relief

         16  in Brooklyn One from passing the plan.  Right now,

         17  there's 2,500 tons of sanitation waste going into

         18  Williamsburg/Greenpoint every day.  Under the

         19  proposed plan, there would only be 1,000 tons going

         20  in.  So, there would be an immediate 1,500 ton

         21  reduction, plus that waste would go out by rail or

         22  barge.

         23                 So, regardless of what happens at

         24  59th Street, regardless of what happens at 91st

         25  Street, there will be an impact in
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          2  Williamsburg/Greenpoint of a, you know, less waste

          3  going to that borough.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  That's

          5  Brooklyn waste within Brooklyn.

          6                 MR. ORLIN:  No, but it's, it's going

          7  to be redistributed, that's the point and --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  It's not

          9  Manhattan waste.

         10                 MR. ORLIN:  No, it is not Manhattan

         11  waste, but you're saying there would be no impact.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, you're,

         13  you have everybody thinking that, that these votes

         14  will give immediate relief, which is deserved and

         15  necessary, but it's wrong.  You're not doing it.

         16  You've got half the people convinced and half the

         17  people bamboozled and that's not the reality.

         18                 If this plan went into effect

         19  immediately and it's not borough based self-

         20  sufficiency, Manhattan still incinerating and the

         21  incinerator fumes are blowing back over the City

         22  anyway, you haven't mentioned that.  That's a 20-

         23  year plan?  That's Manhattan taking care of its

         24  trash?  You build one land based transfer station,

         25  marine transfer station that makes no sense, as Mr.
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          2  Koppell adequately pointed out.  You're going on,

          3  you know, if a plan is bad for 40 years, it doesn't

          4  make it good.  You're taking 59th Street out of the

          5  equation and you're not really giving relief to the

          6  people who are here to get it.  I repeat, shame on

          7  you.

          8                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  I, one, I --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And, isn't

         10  it correct that Gansevoort is in Hudson River Park?

         11  So, you need the approval of the Hudson River Park

         12  Board, which you don't have, and in fact, there's

         13  already a lawsuit going on by the Friends of the

         14  Hudson River Park against your temporary facility

         15  there.  So, in fact, that relief for recycling from

         16  the City is really not coming.  Isn't that correct?

         17                 MR. ORLIN:  I agree we would need an

         18  amendment to the Hudson River Park Trust Act to, to

         19  utilize the Gansevoort facility and the

         20  Administration has been speaking with the community

         21  boards for the past year to try to get that support.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, you

         23  still want this Committee and this Council to vote

         24  on these integral parts of the plan, that's what

         25  you're saying, vote on this, everything else if
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          2  fuzzy and out there.  You guys believe what we're

          3  telling you. It's not true, but just believe it, and

          4  vote these through so we can build these three or

          5  four and that's it.  We'll be back in 20 years to

          6  talk to you about recycling.  And, if any of you

          7  think recycling is an important part of their plan,

          8  go to the website and read it, because it's not.

          9  It's this Council that's going to make recycling,

         10  just like we saved it two years ago, we're going to

         11  save it again and move it to the future.  I am tired

         12  of the lies and the misconceptions and the politics

         13  that's played with this plan.  We're going to do it

         14  right or we're not going to do it at all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Council Member

         16  Reyna.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

         18  Chair.  I'm growing more and more, not confused, but

         19  concerned to a point where now I'm not understanding

         20  how is it that we're going to see, in particular,

         21  any reduction in North Brooklyn.  Now we're back

         22  into a shell game of a vicious cycle, where we're

         23  listening to testimonies of communities concerned

         24  about their tonnage, meanwhile, in North Brooklyn,

         25  we were producing 5,000 tonnage of waste and, or
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          2  rather 5,000 tonnage of waste was being handled in

          3  one community board for the entire City of New York,

          4  at a majority level.

          5                 There's a no new net capacity

          6  attached to this plan, but how are you going to

          7  abide by that good faith effort if now we're going

          8  to go back and start reducing tonnage in MTSs or

          9  considering that there are so many lawsuits against

         10  so many different MTSs or particularly one MTS, in

         11  order to alleviate the fact that communities such as

         12  North Brooklyn are going to get their environmental

         13  justice that they've been calling for for the past

         14  two, three decades?  I'm not too sure if you have

         15  anything to share with me, in particular, as to how

         16  we're moving forward, because I feel like we've just

         17  taken three steps back.

         18                 MR. ORLIN:  Well, first, on the no

         19  new net capacity, I mean, the Department has siting

         20  rules that were recently promulgated that prohibit

         21  any new capacity in Brooklyn One, because it is the

         22  community district with the largest number of

         23  transfer stations.  So, the siting rules, which are

         24  in effect and are law, prohibit any new net capacity

         25  in Brooklyn One.  So, that, that's been taken care
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          2  of by our siting rules.

          3                 In addition, the Department has

          4  promulgated operational rules, which will make

          5  transfer stations better neighbors.  They have new

          6  odor, new odor control requirements for putrescible

          7  stations.  There are new dust control requirements

          8  for fill and C&D stations.

          9                 As far as a reduction in permit

         10  capacity, the City has been speaking with the waste

         11  industry to try to voluntarily achieve a permanent

         12  reduction.  We believe we will be able to make some

         13  sort of announcement in the next few weeks.  You

         14  know, as we've stated before, we prefer to do this

         15  voluntarily to avoid litigation.  That's the attack

         16  we're trying to take right now. But, the City is

         17  fully committed to reducing permitted capacity, if

         18  necessary, through legislation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Robert, just

         20  tell me how is it that you're going to foresee this

         21  reduction occur.  Is there a contingency plan

         22  pertaining to a lot of the fears that my colleagues

         23  here are highlighting?  You know, Sarah Gonzalez is

         24  concerned about 1,900 tonnage being operated from

         25  her area. Council Member Recchia was concerned about
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          2  828 tons being operated and being a problem.  You

          3  know, I'm concerned about 5,000 tonnage in Community

          4  Board One.

          5                 At the end of the day, I don't see

          6  how you, as an agency, are going to be able to

          7  guarantee that everyone here is going to have their

          8  fair share, in addition to seeing that 91st Street

          9  has a thousand lawsuits left and right, big dollars,

         10  communities that can't afford these huge lawsuits

         11  against the Department or against the City.  Where's

         12  all this waste going to go at the end of the day if

         13  we've been in an area where manufacturing zones are

         14  the as of right use for commercial waste and

         15  residential waste?  That's particularly our area,

         16  North Brooklyn.

         17                 MR. ORLIN:  Well, obviously, we think

         18  the plan is very equitable as it's been presented

         19  and we were, you know, we are prepared to push for

         20  that.  I mean, as I mentioned earlier, there will be

         21  relief to North Brooklyn.  I mean, the waste will

         22  now be more equitably distributed to other areas of

         23  Brooklyn.  I mean, right now, you know, a large

         24  majority of Brooklyn's waste is going into Brooklyn

         25  One, Williamsburg/Greenpoint, and that is not the
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          2  case under the, the long- term proposal.  There will

          3  be facilities that have commercial waste capacity,

          4  so that, you know, commercial waste can go to those

          5  new MTSs.  Additionally, you know, we are --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  We also

          7  receive from other parts of the City.

          8                 MR. ORLIN:  Right, and that goes to

          9  the next point, which is that we are, you know,

         10  working with the industry in an attempt to get a

         11  voluntary reduction of capacity particularly in

         12  Brooklyn One --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And there has

         14  been no update on that part?

         15                 MR. ORLIN:  We are, we are continuing

         16  discussions and we expect to be able to make an

         17  announcement in the next few weeks.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And what

         19  happens if 1,900 tonnage is reduced in Sarah

         20  Gonzalez' district, where does that waste go?  It

         21  can only go up or down in areas such as North

         22  Brooklyn or South Brooklyn.

         23                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We do not believe

         24  that there needs to be a change in the waste shed

         25  assignments as they exist now.  We think that they

                                                            83

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  accurately reflect the infrastructure that feeds the

          3  facilities, including what's in North Brooklyn,

          4  Brooklyn One.  We believe that the final

          5  environmental impact statement we've put forward

          6  clearly demonstrates that.  We will talk with the

          7  Councilman again and her community board, as we've

          8  promised, and we've talked about revisiting the

          9  issue of the waste sheds.  We want to do that and we

         10  will do that in the future.

         11                 We're not proposing to do that now.

         12  We don't believe that a sincere look would yield any

         13  change on environmental grounds or capacity grounds.

         14    So, we're not, we're not changing what we've

         15  proposed.  What we've proposed is an array of

         16  procurements for the Brooklyn, North Brooklyn area,

         17  which will handle a total of 950 tons and leverage

         18  our procurement into causing those facilities to

         19  change the way they operate from truck to barge or

         20  rail.  We are proposing the Hamilton facility as

         21  we've proposed it.  We're going to follow through on

         22  Southwest as we've proposed it.  I will, we will as,

         23  talk to Council Member Gonzalez again and to her

         24  community board again and try and demonstrate to her

         25  the analyses and studies we've done.

                                                            84

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 One thing I'd like to mention on the

          3  point of the discussions about capacity reductions

          4  that are going on right now and the Huge Neu

          5  projects that's going on right now and some of the

          6  other new technology studies that are going on right

          7  now. Those are all elements of the plan we've

          8  proposed, which the Council has yet to approve.

          9  But, we're moving through with those and it's the

         10  same philosophy of moving through with those that

         11  has us moving through with these ULURPs.

         12                 We don't want to sit on our hands and

         13  wait and go one step at a time.  We'll never solve

         14  this problem if we keep going incremental one step

         15  at a time.  We're not hiding anything. I apologize

         16  for not disclosing fully what's going on on the West

         17  Side of Manhattan.

         18                 I would also say that people have

         19  talked about 91st Street as, oh, we don't need it.

         20  Well, we don't want to drive the East Side of

         21  Manhattan through the West Side of Manhattan to get

         22  out of town.  We don't think that's equitable in the

         23  borough.  So, we're not proposing to increase.

         24  We're not proposing to change.  We have the plan

         25  we've proposed.  It's before the Council.  We've
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          2  published the FDIS.  We're prepared to pursue that

          3  and that's where we are right now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And I

          5  understand that there's a lot of politics being, you

          6  know, played as far as the Manhattan piece in

          7  concerned.  I'm concerned that what happens if the

          8  City does not win these lawsuits as far as 91st

          9  Street is concerned?  The impact --

         10                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Well --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- It's going

         12  to have.

         13                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We, unless you vote

         14  yes on the ULURP, we're not going to get sued on

         15  91st Street.  So, vote yes on the ULURP and we'll

         16  vigorously argue the suit.  We believe we've dotted

         17  every i, we believe we've crossed every t.  We think

         18  we have a defensible position and we will, we will

         19  aggressively pursue, once the ULURP is passed and

         20  the plan is adopted, what we need to do to build a

         21  facility.  We will try and, you know, make that

         22  happen as quickly as possible.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I value your

         24  confidence in claiming that voting yes on a ULURP

         25  action for four MTSs and I don't want to use the

                                                            86

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  word guarantee, because nothing is guaranteed in

          3  life other than death, and so at the end of the day,

          4  what are the guarantees that we're going to see

          5  these four MTSs operating, creating a reduction in

          6  communities, when there's still questions that have

          7  not been answered as far as a real reduction in the

          8  private sector of, which dominates a few of our

          9  communities, especially those communities of colors

         10  that are trying to seek the appropriate

         11  environmental justice that everyone here is claiming

         12  has to occur, but no one wants to handle waste in

         13  their own backyard?

         14                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  I can't, I don't

         15  know how to tell you to trust me and that I'm

         16  committed to doing this or we're committed to doing

         17  this and going to get it done.  What I can ask you

         18  to do is go back and look at the plan we've proposed

         19  and the way it endeavors to be fair and equitable

         20  and the way it endeavors to put the pieces together

         21  so that what's going on now will not go on in the

         22  future.  We created that because we think it's the

         23  right thing to do.  We're pursuing that because we

         24  think it's the right thing to do.  We've got it, you

         25  know, we're pursuing it on several fronts at once,
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          2  not to hide things or to trick people and we want to

          3  move this item.

          4                 It's time to finally solve this

          5  problem.  I mean, not only because of what's going

          6  on and what's happening with the trucks trundling

          7  through neighborhoods, it's time to solve it because

          8  that alternative is running out of life.  Those

          9  facilities in Pennsylvania are filling up.  Our last

         10  bid jumped by 24 percent from somewhere in the 70s-

         11  95 dollars a ton, and that's to export by truck.

         12  So, it's time, we need to move, and we think that

         13  this is the direction we should move.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  There were 128

         15  tons that were decreased in Domenic Recchia's area,

         16  that's the MTS.

         17                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, where did

         19  that tonnage go or was there room?

         20                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  That was, that was

         21  proposed commercial tonnage there.  When we re- ran

         22  the numbers, based on comments and suggestions about

         23  the DEIS, we found out that even though the facility

         24  has the capacity to handle more, the environmental

         25  impacts associated with delivering that waste could
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          2  not support the higher number.  So, we had to cut it

          3  back.

          4                 That's a similar analysis we did for

          5  every MTS in terms of defining how much potential

          6  commercial waste we could send there.  It's defined

          7  by what constitutes an environmentally sound

          8  quantity that could get into and out of the

          9  facility.  That amount is in the system.

         10                 Now, I will, if we do all aspects of

         11  this plan fully, we will create about 3,500 tons of

         12  commercial waste capacity at the MTSs we propose to

         13  develop.  We will cause, if we distribute our

         14  contracts the way we want to distribute them, the

         15  creation of about 10,000 tons of commercial waste

         16  transfer station capacity that will be all barge or

         17  rail, and we will create something at 59th Street.

         18  So, we've, we've defined a great amount of capacity

         19  to create to address the commercial waste issue, and

         20  it's distributed throughout the City.  So --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, 128 tons

         22  went where?

         23                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Right now, it will

         24  go into another element of what it is we're

         25  proposing to develop.  It might, it might go to one
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          2  of the commercial waste guys we sign a contract

          3  with, who's going to convert his facility to move by

          4  barge or rail.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, that means

          6  North Brooklyn would get it.

          7                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  No, it could be in

          8  the Bronx. No, it could be at Queens in where we're

          9  proposing to do something there.  Or, it could be at

         10  Hamilton, or it could be one of the -- or, as

         11  they're reminding me, it could also be excess

         12  capacity given the large number I just gave you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Where is, I'm

         14  assuming that as far, we --

         15                 MR. ORLIN:  I'm sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Yes.

         17                 MR. ORLIN:  Just, you know, the 128

         18  tons is just capacity to handle commercial waste at

         19  the facility.  It's not a reduction in the

         20  residential waste.  The same amount of residential

         21  waste will go there.  So, there's just, basically,

         22  there's just less potential commercial waste that

         23  can be handled at that particular facility.  So, you

         24  know, it doesn't mean the waste has to go some

         25  place, there's just less waste that could
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          2  potentially go there from commercial enterprises.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But, Robert,

          4  isn't it fair to say that you're basing total number

          5  of tonnage on what you foresee will be the capacity

          6  necessary, as well as some room to leverage future

          7  waste, both on the residential as well as the

          8  commercial sector?

          9                 MR. ORLIN:  Well, we believe that

         10  the, as far as residential waste goes, you know,

         11  that's based on historic districts and, you know,

         12  our environmental review shows that that waste can

         13  be handled without significant impacts.

         14                 In addition, we analyzed the

         15  potential amount of commercial waste that can go

         16  through these facilities and, you know, we intend to

         17  have commercial waste go through these facilities.

         18  It may not be the absolute maximum amount.  I mean,

         19  that's something we're going to work out.  But, you

         20  know, so, so in terms of that 128 tons, I mean

         21  there's still over 700 tons of commercial capacity

         22  at that facility, which is, you know, a significant

         23  amount of commercial capacity that, you know,

         24  wouldn't have to go some place else.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And 700
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          2  commercial, what's the residential in that area?

          3                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  950.  The average

          4  would be 950.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  If I were to

          6  ask you, I'm not too sure if you have this

          7  breakdown, in Brooklyn, if we're talking about

          8  borough self- sufficiency in the commercial sector

          9  of waste, where is waste being handled or how is it

         10  being handled?  Is it by community board waste shed

         11  or is it?

         12                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Today?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Not today.

         14                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  In the future?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  In the future.

         16                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  In the future, it's,

         17  it's the waste sheds that I defined for you before,

         18  Brooklyn, Southwest --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Similar to the

         20  residential.

         21                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Yeah.  Oh, you mean

         22  the commercial waste, oh, I, I'm sorry, I'm not

         23  going to speak, I can't, off the top of my head,

         24  speak to, you know, who's collecting what commercial

         25  waste in Brooklyn and going where.  I don't --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So we still

          3  don't  --

          4                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- Do that without

          5  going back and looking things up.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Is there

          7  anyone who would be able to come back with that

          8  answer today?  I'm trying to understand the total,

          9  it goes back to what Mike was expressing, the total

         10  comprehensive plan of looking at this, not just by

         11  breaking it down into one day where you talk about

         12  residential, the next day we talk about commercial,

         13  then we go back and then we go forward.

         14                 It's difficult because we're not

         15  getting the clear total tonnage when referring to

         16  communities in relation to waste and processing

         17  waste and I just find it very difficult to

         18  understand how is our community in North Brooklyn

         19  going to be affected if commercial waste is not

         20  going to be equitably distributed throughout the

         21  borough, let alone the City of New York.

         22                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Well, all right,

         23  the, on the, we, we might be able to, I don't know

         24  if we could do it today, dig through all our old

         25  reports and come up with how much commercial waste
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          2  is generated in each borough, we assume is generated

          3  in each borough.  That does not mean that --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  That's the

          5  first break down that you did?

          6                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Well, yeah, we could

          7  do that, but the, the --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  No, but I'm

          9  asking --

         10                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  --  The amount

         11  that's generated in a borough is not necessarily the

         12  amount, I mean, the collectors of commercial waste

         13  don't, they don't have waste sheds or community

         14  districts like we do.  They have routes and

         15  competitive businesses and they scurry all about and

         16  they make decisions based on their business

         17  practices.  So, I can't say that what's connected in

         18  Brooklyn is going to Brooklyn, just like what's

         19  collected in Manhattan is not clearly going to

         20  Manhattan.

         21                 With regard to the chock a block

         22  nature of, you know, you're getting commercial waste

         23  this day and recycling that day and costs on another

         24  day.  That's the Hearing schedule associated with

         25  the SWMP.  We didn't set it up that way.  We will
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          2  try and be more comprehensive in our answers to

          3  questions like this in our presentations, regardless

          4  of the subject, but --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But, wouldn't

          6  the land use item on these four MTSs handle both the

          7  residential, as well as the commercial waste issue

          8  and the equitability that you're trying to reach as

          9  far as borough self- sufficiency is concerned?

         10                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  We always refer to

         11  borough self sufficiency as pertaining principally

         12  to the DSNY and City managed material.  The

         13  equitable issue pertains to trying to address the

         14  fact that, by circumstance, the majority of

         15  commercial waste transfer stations have located in

         16  certain neighborhoods and we believe it would be

         17  better both for the businesses in the City and for

         18  the environment of those neighborhoods to distribute

         19  commercial waste capacity more evenly throughout the

         20  City.

         21                 We think if we do that by creating

         22  commercial waste capacity at the MTSs and at 59th

         23  Street and doing the things we want to do through

         24  our procurements, we'll make more and better

         25  disposal sites for commercial waste and the business
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          2  will adjust to use them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me for a

          4  moment please.

          5                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  First of all,

          7  the Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

          8  Concessions has been moved to 250 Broadway, 16th

          9  Floor.  That's a 1:00 meeting, so if there's anyone

         10  here that's supposed to be at that meeting, that's

         11  across the street.  With all due respect, the hour's

         12  getting late and we have a lot of people that would

         13  like to testify.  So, if it's okay, I'd like to move

         14  on to your next colleague.  Unless you have

         15  something critical  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  It's not okay

         17  Simcha, but I respect you as my Chair and I want to

         18  be able to continue these discussions.  I don't know

         19  if this is going to be the only Land Use Hearing

         20  before we have, the time runs out, because May 31st

         21  is my understanding of a vote clearly, based on the

         22  time clock, of having taken place.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You know what?

         24  I think that the people that are testifying now, I'd

         25  ask you to stay, you know, for the end of the
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          2  Hearing, so that this way the Council Members, this

          3  looks like it's going to be the last one, will have

          4  an opportunity to ask you any questions that they

          5  have.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And that's a

          7  problem.  I'm not here to ask these questions for

          8  myself --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Of course --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- But for the

         11  public.  I have all these yellow shirts from my

         12  community and this is exactly what they need to

         13  start understanding --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- Because if

         16  we're painting a pretty picture as to this plan, and

         17  they're expecting that the vote on these four MTSs

         18  is going to provide them with environmental justice

         19  and equity, you know, then we're doing a disservice

         20  to them as well.  My line of questioning is not for

         21  my behalf of understanding this, it's for their

         22  behalf of understanding this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I understand

         24  that clearly, so --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, if there's
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          2  going to be another Hearing, I would be satisfied in

          3  ending my line of questioning.  But, if this is not,

          4  then it's unacceptable.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I don't know if

          6  there will be another Hearing.  I don't, let me find

          7  out.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

          9  If I can just remind people, we submitted on May,

         10  I'm sorry, April 26th, the clock runs through early

         11  June.

         12                 MR. ORLIN:  June 13th.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         14  June 13th. I'm sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Let me make

         16  something clear, that in terms of the City Council,

         17  I am asking, or I should say, I'm demanding that

         18  before the vote takes place, that you come back

         19  again, so that any Member of the Council has an

         20  opportunity to ask you as many questions as they

         21  want to.

         22                 In terms of the public, today is the

         23  opportunity for the public to have an opportunity to

         24  testify.  That will not take place on this issue

         25  again.  So, to answer your question, Council Member
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          2  Reyna, I think that you will -- if you don't, let me

          3  just say, that I am not entertaining a vote on this

          4  item unless you agree to come back and answer

          5  questions that Council Member Reyna or anyone else

          6  has.  The only reason I'm stopping you now is, you

          7  know, just to give everybody else a chance and,

          8  because it's been a long morning and now afternoon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I appreciate

         10  that Mr. Chair and --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, I think that

         12  will --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I will accept

         14  that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Especially

         16  since you've been an extraordinary representative

         17  for your community and we do like the yellow shirts

         18   --

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         20  If you need us back, we'll be back to answer

         21  questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, that's a

         23  deal.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And that's a

         25  formal Hearing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm telling you

          3  now, for the record, that we need you back.  So,

          4  you'll be back when we vote on it, and this way, any

          5  Council Members who have any questions will have the

          6  opportunity to ask them at that point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Is that a vote

          8  on the same day as --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yeah.  Is that

         10  good? Because, if it's not, there's not much else

         11  that I can do.  But, the commitment is, the

         12  commitment is that if people are not happy, just

         13  because it's on the agenda, doesn't mean that we

         14  have to okay it.  I mean, if you want to come back,

         15  whoever it is, whoever has any reservations about

         16  it, you know, we'll come back that day.  Or, if you

         17  want, you know, I will ask them to remain, I'm just

         18  trying to be considerate of the people that have

         19  been here for a long time, that's all.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I understand

         21  and I --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And if you want,

         23  I can ask them to remain to the very end and we'll

         24  take as many questions as you want.  You know,

         25  you're the boss.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I just want to

          5  mention that Council Member Melinda Katz, the Chair

          6  of the Land Use Division, is here and just mention

          7  that I should make sure that you make yourself

          8  available to any Members, obviously, that have any

          9  concerns privately.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And they have

         11  done that.  I don't want --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- To paint,

         14  you know, the Department of Sanitation has been very

         15  attentive --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yeah.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:   -- On an

         18  individual basis. It goes beyond the individual

         19  basis --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- I'm

         22  referring to the same questions.  It's the

         23  comprehensive approach of sitting down and looking

         24  at this, both at the commercial and the residential

         25  piece, putting them together and understanding this
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          2  as to how we're going to see parody across the City.

          3    Equitable justice here.  I'm not hearing this.

          4  I'm not too sure if it's that I'm missing something

          5  or is it that questions are not being answered. So,

          6  until that is addressed, I want to see a waste

          7  management plan voted for, but it has to be voted

          8  for where we're going to actually see something

          9  happening, not just hope for the best.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, to conclude

         11   --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  To conclude --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, I --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- We've

         15  agreed that we will stop the line of questioning, as

         16  far as I'm concerned, to move forward, there has to

         17  be another --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, No I just

         19  wanted --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- Day

         21  scheduled.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, that,

         23  there's no question that at the next, what is it?

         24  Which date? The 31st, they're going to be back and

         25  they'll be --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And it's not

          3  possible to do it before the 31st, which is the last

          4  day of the vote and so, then we're going to be just

          5  playing a Russian roulette game here.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, I would

          7  them, if it's okay with you, I'd like to make sure

          8  that they, I mean, they could go out, have lunch, do

          9  whatever you want, and come back to be here at the

         10  end of the Hearing to take as many questions as you

         11  want today, if that would be, you know, okay.  This

         12  way, we get it done today.  I'd like to clean this

         13  up.  I mean, if it can be cleaned.  Whatever is

         14  going to happen, I believe that whatever answers

         15  you're going to get to your questions, you're going

         16  to get them today --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I think they

         18  need time to come back, is that my understanding?

         19  You have to go and get a lot of these --

         20                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  I would appreciate

         21  to come back. But, I would say that in between then,

         22  now and then, that we will make ourselves available

         23  to understand the questions that you're asking

         24  better, so that when we do come back, we'll, we can

         25  have better answers and we offer that, as we've done
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          2  and continue to do to every Member of the Committee

          3  and the Council.  It just, I think, might be more

          4  productive that way.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You don't have to

          6  be sorry about anything.  I think that at this time,

          7  we have one option that's going to take place, which

          8  is that they're going to come back the day of the

          9  vote, which is the 31st, right?  Okay, that's one.

         10  Number two, I just want to know whether you want to

         11  me to make sure they're here at the end of the

         12  Hearing to answer more questions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  No, I, they

         14  can, I would encourage that they stay to listen to

         15  the public --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  -- But, after

         18  the public, it doesn't make sense to continue

         19  discussing the same questions I need answers.  So, I

         20  would prefer them to go back and, you know, if we

         21  need to have further clarification one on one, I

         22  will do so --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:   -- But, I am

         25  more interested in just making sure that we come
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          2  back, on the record, state what those answers are on

          3  the 31st.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, I look

          5  forward to that happening.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I appreciate

          8  your patience. Council Member Palma.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Thank you Mr.

         10  Chair and I'll be brief, I just --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Listen, you

         12  don't have to be brief --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Well, I want

         14  to be brief --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- You've been

         16  patient.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  I want to be

         18  brief, because I need to be somewhere else.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Oh, okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  I want to

         21  thank the Administration because they sat down with

         22  me and they also briefed me on this thing and

         23  although today some other concerns and other

         24  questions have been raised, which is a little

         25  confusing, I still am on board to support a plan
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          2  that will alleviate and make sure that there is

          3  environmental justice equitably across the City of

          4  New York.  But, my question is, is there a status on

          5  the negotiations with the two private vendors in the

          6  Bronx that you were in, are they on board with the

          7  plan?

          8                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  The, we are

          9  negotiating with, we did issue the RFPs and, in

         10  fact, that was part of the process we used to

         11  ascertain whether or not those were reasonable

         12  alternatives.  We are in discussion with the private

         13  vendors for the Bronx and the other sites, moving

         14  towards a, a, you know, a contract that we all can

         15  agree upon.

         16                 They are definitely on board with

         17  what we've proposed to do and want to do the

         18  business.  There are some edges in terms of risk

         19  distribution and commitments that we have to work

         20  through, but we will work through them.  So, we're,

         21  you know, making progress in that regard.  As I

         22  said, we're trying to move forward on all fronts, so

         23  that when this plan is adopted, when these ULURPs

         24  are approved, we're ready to go and this plan can be

         25  implemented in a reasonable time frame and the
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          2  things we wanted to achieve can be achieved sooner

          3  rather than later.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Thank you.

          5  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Before I give

          7  Council Member McMahon an opportunity to speak

          8  again, I just wanted to say that it's on days like

          9  today that it really is an honor to serve with my

         10  colleagues and the Council.  Some, whether they're

         11  here now to hear it or not, but you really see

         12  people who really care about their communities and

         13  who are determined to get that message across.

         14                 So, it's really wonderful, I think,

         15  especially for everyone who's here to see that the

         16  representatives and Members and Council really care

         17  about making sure that the City runs well and that

         18  people get a fair deal.  That statement is in

         19  general about my colleagues, as well as the staff

         20  here.  With that, I'd like to introduce again

         21  Council Member McMahon, who I had the honor of

         22  sitting on his Sanitation Committee.  He's the Chair

         23  of the Sanitation Committee.  So, the importance is

         24  even greater, and who is a brilliant man and had the

         25  foresight to throw me off his Committee.  Yes,
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          2  Council Member McMahon.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Just two or

          4  three follow ups Mr. Chairman.  I know we want to

          5  move to the public and we'll be back on the 31st.

          6  But, when you were speaking with Council Member

          7  Reyna in the beginning, you seemed to infer that the

          8  plan is now presented to the Council and you're

          9  moving on all fronts. But, isn't it correct that the

         10  plan was delivered to us a year behind schedule, a

         11  year later than it was supposed to be, by State law?

         12                 And, isn't it also correct that the

         13  Council offered to you two years ago, I said to you

         14  personally and to the Chairman publicly and

         15  privately, make us part of the planning process from

         16  the beginning, so that we then don't have to go

         17  through this whole give and take afterwards and that

         18  that offer was really rebuffed?  Would you respond

         19  to those two questions please.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         21  On the second issue, I don't think that was

         22  rebuffed.  I think we've been working with you and

         23  your Committee throughout this process.  In terms of

         24  the plan coming in later than it was supposed to be,

         25  later than scheduled, there were many extenuating
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          2  circumstances why we had to divert our efforts after

          3  9/11.  The State, in fact, did give us, grant us an

          4  extension of time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay.

          6  Lastly -- and the other point, we'll go over the

          7  31st, but also the point Council Member Palma was

          8  making about the commercial waste and getting that

          9  into the system.  There is no agreement with any

         10  contractor to put that commercial waste into this

         11  MTS system at this time, is that correct?

         12                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And, in

         14  fact, by all estimates from the Department and from

         15  the commercial corridors themselves, from the

         16  National Solid Waste Management Association, the

         17  cost of doing that, at this point, is prohibitive,

         18  isn't that correct?

         19                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  That's correct, at

         20  this time.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So, again,

         22  the promise that this is immediate relief for the

         23  problems that need immediate is really a false

         24  promise, isn't that correct?

         25                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  I, no, it's not a
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          2  promise that we've made that this is immediate

          3  relief.  We've never, I've never said that give me

          4  the MTSs and immediately we'll relieve the problem.

          5  There's a construction cycle to go through with the

          6  MTSs.  What I have told the community --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, what's

          8  the --

          9                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- What I told the

         10  community boards we've met with, what I've told the

         11  Council Members we've briefed, is that we're

         12  creating a possibility here to handle commercial

         13  waste, that the commercial corridors in this town

         14  are confronting the same problem and cost increase

         15  we're confronting, because they are primarily

         16  exporting their waste, in trucks, to nearby

         17  landfills in Pennsylvania and Ohio.

         18                 Those sites are filling up and

         19  becoming more expensive.  They will, in time, find

         20  us to be a reasonable alternative.  I am convinced

         21  of that, National Solid Waste Management Association

         22  position paper notwithstanding.  I mean, their goal

         23  is to keep us doing what we're doing, which is

         24  paying them $95.00 a ton to truck our waste out of

         25  town.  The handwriting's on the wall, waste needs to
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          2  move in a different way.  We're promoting the

          3  creation of those different ways through our

          4  procurement actions, our proposed procurement

          5  actions and through the creation of these

          6  facilities.  We believe we will become  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, if you

          8  were serious --

          9                 MR. CZWARTACKY:  -- An alternative

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- About

         11  that --

         12                 Mr. CZWARTACKY:  -- For them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- You would

         14  be adopting our proposal, which would be to drive

         15  down the caps on the private waste transfer

         16  stations, and that would provide more immediate

         17  relief to the neighborhoods in question, rather than

         18  making this long- term promise and getting involved

         19  in this whole battle here over what I've already, I

         20  repeat everything I said before.  That will be my

         21  last, I'll take the question and I understand the

         22  Chairman wants to adjourn this until the 31st.

         23                 MR. ORLIN:  I'm just going to respond

         24  to your last point about putting a cap on transfer

         25  stations.  I think as we've had some discussions in

                                                            111

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  your Committee, there are bills introduced every

          3  year in Congress that would allow governors to limit

          4  the amount of waste coming into their states.  We

          5  believe that having a flat reduction in capacity in

          6  New York City would not be viewed favorably by

          7  members of Congress, who want to see New York State

          8  waste and New York City waste not come into their

          9  borders.  So, what we've done instead is that we've

         10  targeted reduction for those areas of the City with

         11  the highest concentration of transfer stations.  We

         12  think that's the best solution to equitably

         13  allocating transfer station responsibility in the

         14  City.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SZARPANSKI:

         16  Well, if I could just make one other remark just for

         17  the record.  The Administration's been accused of

         18  acting in a disingenuous way on having these two

         19  parallel pass, the ULURP and the SWMP approval

         20  action.  The ULURP process started in November of

         21   '04 and, you know, once the clock starts, there is

         22  no stopping of that clock. We could have all

         23  predicted to the day or to the week when this action

         24  would come up.

         25                 In terms of the SWMP, the SWMP was
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          2  submitted back in October of last year.  The Council

          3  had held, I think, five Hearings during that time,

          4  the Council did not wait, nor did it need to wait

          5  for the final EIS.  I think the Council could have

          6  moved quickly after the final EIS to vote for that

          7  action if it wanted to move the SWMP action prior to

          8  the ULURP action.  Just for the record.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Only for the

         10  record, let me state that's only true if we want to

         11  adopt every single thing that you say in your plan.

         12  How do you expect us to now, in four weeks time,

         13  come up with our alternate plan and present that and

         14  having Hearings on that?  That was disingenuous what

         15  you just said, because that's only if you expect us

         16  to accept you ramming down the trash of this plan

         17  like you're trying to ram down the trash of this

         18  plan in other parts of the City.  We will not accept

         19  that in this Council.  You think that we're going to

         20  rubber stamp your plan?  Well, you're wrong and I'm

         21  very offended by that statement.  Thank you Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do any of my

         24  colleagues have any other questions?  Seeing none,

         25  thank you for your testimony. Yeah, I would
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          2  appreciate it, I shouldn't say I would appreciate

          3  it, no I would appreciate it, if somebody, at least

          4  somebody makes sure to stay until the end of the

          5  Hearing.  Somebody may have some questions and this

          6  way they may be able to ask you.

          7                 Okay.  We are now first going to have

          8  two representatives of the elected officials,

          9  Siddhartha Sanchez from Congressman Serrano's office

         10  and Evelyn Cruz from Councilman Velazquez' office

         11  and the Sergeant- at- Arms, I'd appreciate it if you

         12  would get ready to use the clock.  You know what?

         13  You can leave the computer there.  This way,

         14  somebody will have to stay until the end of the

         15  meeting.  We're ready whenever you are.  All you

         16  have to do is push the button and you can, if it's

         17  off it's on, and you can decide among yourselves.

         18                 MS. CRUZ:  Good afternoon.  My name

         19  is Evelyn Cruz and I'm the Congressional Liaison to

         20  Congresswoman Nydia Velazquez.  I want to thank

         21  Chairman Felder and the Members of the City Council

         22  for the opportunity to submit a brief statement

         23  regarding this New York City proposed Solid Waste

         24  Management Plan.

         25                 As the representative of New York's

                                                            114

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  Twelfth Congressional District, which encompasses

          3  Brooklyn, Queens and Manhattan and the communities

          4  of Sunset Park, Red Hook, Bushwick, East New York,

          5  Williamsburg/Greenpoint, Sunnyside, Queens, Maspeth

          6  Queens, just to name a few, I have been working

          7  actively in Washington to end environmental racism

          8  in my district and nationwide.

          9                 Today, I am writing to express my

         10  support for the equitable re- opening of the three

         11  marine transfer stations in New York City's proposed

         12  Solid Waste Management Plan.  The re- opening of

         13  these MTSs is crucial to relieving all the burdened

         14  communities from environmental inequities and the

         15  saturation of land- based waste transfer stations.

         16                 I'm supporting the re- opening of the

         17  MTS stations because it is an essential part of the

         18  City's proposed Solid Waste Management Plan.

         19  Communities in my congressional district have the

         20  highest number of waste transfer stations in the

         21  country, with the vast majority of these transfer

         22  stations located in Greenpoint and Williamsburg.

         23  Brooklyn has a total of 25 land- based waste

         24  transfer stations and handles approximately 44

         25  percent of the City's waste daily.
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          2                 The burden of handling over 80

          3  percent of the entire City's waste should not be

          4  imposed on a few low- income neighborhoods of color

          5  in the Bronx, in Brooklyn and Queens. This

          6  represents the height of environmental injustice.

          7                 The proposed plan will use the MTAs

          8  to compact, containerize and export solid waste via

          9  waterways rather than by trucks from the land- based

         10  transfer stations.  This will help ensure that no

         11  neighborhood or borough handles more than its fair

         12  share of the City's garbage and reduce truck traffic

         13  on key thoroughfares.

         14                 The MTS will manage most of the

         15  City's residential waste and have the capacity to

         16  also operate a large portion of the City's

         17  commercial waste.  Removing any of these facilities

         18  from the plan will have a domino effect that will

         19  jeopardize the goals of the plan.  I'm convinced

         20  that the Solid Waste Management Plan is a viable

         21  solution to New York City's waste management crisis.

         22    However, the SWMP will only be successful if it

         23  helps to permanently reduce a significant number of

         24  land- based transfer stations and ensures that each

         25  of the City's boroughs, including Manhattan, moves
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          2  towards self- sufficiency --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Excuse me, are

          4  you almost done?

          5                 MS. CRUZ:  -- In disposing its own --

          6  yes -- own residential and commercial waste.  It is

          7  shameful that Manhattan does not have not one

          8  transfer station and the communities of Brooklyn and

          9  Queens have to bear the brunt of their waste and the

         10  toxics (sic) that they emit.  It is time for

         11  Manhattan to handle its fair share of their

         12  residential and commercial waste.  Sunset Park, Red

         13  Hook, Williamsburg/Greenpoint and Bushwick, just to

         14  name a few, are sick and tired of being sick and

         15  tired.  It is imperative for the City to ensure that

         16  the public's welfare of its citizens by reducing and

         17  relieving the problem across the City.

         18                 In closing, I thank you, in closing,

         19  I ask you to take into consideration the information

         20  from today's speakers and urge you to consider this

         21  initiative and join in ensuring that our

         22  environmental policies do not continue to

         23  disproportionately impact low income and minority

         24  communities.  Again, I thank you for the opportunity

         25  to provide these comments and written comments are
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          2  forthcoming.  Thank you.

          3                 MR. SANCHEZ:  Good afternoon Chairman

          4  Felder, Council Members, concerned community

          5  members.  My name is Siddhartha Sanchez and I'm

          6  representing Congressman Jose Serrano. This letter

          7  was circulated last week to all the Council Members

          8  on behalf of Congressman Serrano and it's also

          9  available for anyone who would like a copy.

         10                 I am writing to express to you my

         11  concerns about the efforts of some to hold up the

         12  unfinished business of implementing New York's

         13  proposed solid waste export plan.  As you may know,

         14  for too long, certain communities in our City have

         15  been disproportionately burdened with garbage from

         16  other boroughs, while neighborhoods in Upper

         17  Manhattan have been saddled with high volumes of

         18  diesel truck traffic from waste haulers bound for

         19  outer borough and out of state processing and

         20  disposal sites.

         21                 There is, however, a sensible and

         22  equitable plan that would greatly reduce these

         23  practices, the Department of Sanitation's Solid

         24  Waste Management Plan, while not perfect, would have

         25  a positive impact on the health of low income
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          2  communities currently confronted with high volumes

          3  of truck traffic and clusters of waste transfer

          4  stations.

          5                 Clearly, utilizing pre- existing

          6  marine transfer stations to barge residential waste

          7  out of the City offers the greatest opportunity to

          8  reduce vehicle miles traveled through asthma plagued

          9  communities and minimize diesel emissions in places

         10  like East Harlem, the South Bronx and

         11  Williamsburg/Greenpoint.

         12                 The waste export plan now before the

         13  Council would help reduce pollution from trucks that

         14  pass through these City neighborhoods through the

         15  use of locally accessible marine transfer stations

         16  and would lessen the City's reliance on truck based

         17  solutions to our waste disposal crisis.

         18                 For years, the South Bronx and East

         19  Harlem have suffered crippling and public health

         20  consequences as a result of the high volume of

         21  diesel trucks that pass through these neighborhoods

         22  on the way to private transfer stations in the Bronx

         23  and disposal sites beyond the City.  The results

         24  have been acute.  The children in these

         25  neighborhoods suffer from the highest asthma rates
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          2  in the country.  The use of the existing marine

          3  transfer station infrastructure has the potential to

          4  greatly reduce the number of trucks on the road

          5  throughout the City, and as such, greatly improve

          6  air quality in hard hit neighborhoods.

          7                 While I strongly endorse the reuse

          8  and re- opening of the marine transfer stations, I

          9  firmly oppose any attempt to use these marine

         10  transfer stations to move trash from one borough to

         11  another.  The Bronx does not want, nor does it need

         12  more trash from other boroughs, and neighborhoods

         13  like Upper Manhattan do not need any more outbound

         14  waste hauling trucks rumbling through their streets.

         15                 We fully support the SWMP's goal of

         16  equity and borough self- sufficiency in the handling

         17  of solid waste and the full utilization of marine

         18  transfer stations, valuable public assets that hold

         19  the solution to our waste crisis.  We strongly

         20  encourage the City, strongly encourage the City

         21  Council to overcome the objectionable few, approve

         22  the ULURP applications for retrofitting the City's

         23  marine transfers stations and pass a plan that

         24  supports the goals of environmental justice, borough

         25  self- sufficiency and waste reduction.  Sincerely,
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          2  Jose Serrano.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          4  much.  Any questions?  I guess I'm talking to

          5  myself.  Thank you for your testimony.

          6                 MR. SANCHEZ:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  If you can

          8  please submit copies of your testimony, I would

          9  appreciate it.  Can I ask the Sergeant- at- Arms to

         10  add two chairs please to the table.  Elaine

         11  Friedman, Carol Tweedy, Ellen Diamond, Richard

         12  Leland, I think that's four, Dr. Arthur Livingston

         13  and Marjorie Flannigan MacLachlan.  Thank you.

         14                 Okay, we'll start from the right,

         15  you're on.  My right.  No, everyone gets two

         16  minutes, as long as you're not repeating yourselves,

         17  that's all.  You can pass the mic over, can you pass

         18  the mic over please?  We are ready.  Push the button

         19  please.

         20                 MS. MACLACHLAN:  Sorry.  Marjorie

         21  Flannigan MacLachlan, homeowner at 180 East End

         22  Avenue, representing the 144 shareholders there.

         23  I'm on the Board.  First, I also am so impressed

         24  with how this Council, these Council Members on this

         25  Committee and also the Sanitation Committee have
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          2  really tried so hard to grasp this plan, and I share

          3  your frustration with the Department of Sanitation's

          4  failure to look for alternatives within Manhattan.

          5  Representative Koppell mentioned that.  I believe

          6  Mr. McMahon mentioned it.

          7                 In fact, the head of the Department

          8  of Sanitation has admitted in other testimony that

          9  they did not look for any other reasonable sites

         10  within Manhattan.  They chose the 91st Street MTS

         11  for the same reason Bill Clinton wrote, he could

         12  have an affair with Monica Lewinsky, it was because

         13  he could.  They picked it because they could,

         14  because 60 years ago it was there. So, they're using

         15  it, they're doing it.  It is the only MTS that is in

         16  the middle of a children's playground.  It is, it

         17  abuts public housing, middle and low income housing

         18  and yes, luxury housing.  But, it is in the middle

         19  of a playground, it's heavily used by students.  We

         20  have rat and cockroach allergens as well. There's an

         21  asthma clinic at 96th Street and First Avenue.

         22                 Also, the other thing I wanted to

         23  make sure, I don't know if you all have time, but

         24  there has been extraordinary public testimony by

         25  doctors and environmentalists and engineers and
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          2  teachers and heads of schools and parents and others

          3  at the Department of Sanitation Hearings in June and

          4  December, that went on for hours, and I think it's

          5  remarkable that people on both sides have shown up

          6  here.

          7                 But, I think that the Committee

          8  should take into consideration that people are not

          9  professional advocates.  But, I don't think that

         10  means that their testimony should be ignored and I

         11  would urge you to go to the DOS website and just

         12  review that testimony, because alternative sites

         13  were offered and other things that weren't discussed

         14  were, by the Department of Sanitation and that you

         15  brought up, that I believe needs addressing are

         16  recycling and the use of waste disposal sites.  I

         17  understand that a majority of the residential waste

         18  could be disposed of in that manner.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         20                 MS. TWEEDY:  I'm Carol Tweedy and I'm

         21  the Executive Director of Asphalt Green.  Asphalt

         22  Green is strongly opposed to the opening of the

         23  marine transfer station at 91st Street.  Our

         24  tagline, sports and fitness for a lifetime, says it

         25  all.  We serve over 45,000 people a year.  There are
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          2  over 675,000 visits, mostly on the part of children,

          3  that pass right by the ramp that the proposed marine

          4  transfer station would use.  This is coupled with

          5  access- a- ride vehicles, elderly, strollers,

          6  wheelchairs.  There are over 125 different schools,

          7  businesses and voluntary groups that use, use

          8  Asphalt Green.

          9                 The land we're on and the buildings,

         10  they're owned by the Department of Parks.  Since the

         11  City's partnership with Asphalt Green began, the

         12  City has invested over $10 million in capital funds

         13  and the private community has invested over $30

         14  million in order to support this facility, and

         15  that's not counting the operational support.

         16                 As an organization committed to

         17  health, we cannot support this plan or any plan that

         18  puts a facility like this in any densely populated

         19  residential neighborhood, and I would remind

         20  everyone there is no residential garbage from

         21  Manhattan that now goes to the outer boroughs.

         22                 We know what it would be like to have

         23  it open. We've had it before.  People withdraw their

         24  children from programs because of the smells, the

         25  rats, the noise.  Over 30 years ago, the City agreed
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          2  that it was important to encourage activity and

          3  exercise when the deserted asphalt plant, which is

          4  now a landmarked building and within 200 feet of the

          5  proposed marine transfer station, was transformed

          6  into a magnificent recreational facility, that's the

          7  parabolic arch that was shown in the drawings from

          8  the Sanitation Department.  What happened between

          9  then and now, when our mission is most critical?

         10  There's an epidemic of obesity.  A staggering 43

         11  percent of New York public school kids are

         12  overweight or obese.  These, among so many other

         13  realities, make the plan to build a garbage dump, a

         14  garbage dump is what it is, at 91st Street,

         15  completely incomprehensible.

         16                 MS. FRIEDMAN:  Oh, good afternoon.

         17  My name's Elaine Friedman.  My family and I live at

         18  Gracie Gardens, an apartment complex just a stone's

         19  throw away from the proposed East 91st Street

         20  transfer station.  I'm giving my statement today as

         21  a concerned parent.  These are my children, Grant,

         22  age six and Halley, age three.  These are just two

         23  of the tens of thousands of very real children

         24  living in Gracie Point, who will not be able to

         25  sleep because commercial garbage will be brought
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          2  into the transfer station throughout the night, six

          3  nights a week in dozens of unregulated garbage

          4  trucks per night.

          5                 They will not be able to breathe

          6  because of noxious odors from the transfer station

          7  and the smells and exhaust from the garbage trucks.

          8  They will not be able to play at Asphalt Green or in

          9  Carl Shurz Park or ride their bikes on the

         10  magnificent Greenway because of the bad smells,

         11  because the parks and neighborhood will become

         12  fouled with vermin, including rats and seagull

         13  droppings.

         14                 The children's physical safety will

         15  be seriously compromised any time we try to cross

         16  the street with the increased traffic from garbage

         17  trucks.  It's already unsafe with traffic coming off

         18  the FDR, with all the articulated cross- town buses

         19  and schools buses that crisscross our residential

         20  neighborhood.

         21                 The Department of Sanitation has

         22  callously minimized our concerns.  They'd like you

         23  to believe that queuing is the only problem we're

         24  concerned with.  That's just one of the many, many

         25  significant issues to be concerned with.
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          2                 The Mayor and environmentalists

          3  favoring the re opening of the transfer station

          4  argue that every borough should process its own

          5  waste.  That is a laudable goal.  But, it is

          6  nonsense to conclude that environmental fairness

          7  mandates that a monster garbage dump must be located

          8  in a densely populated residential neighborhood,

          9  home to tens of thousands of children and elderly

         10  people.

         11                 Even a child can grasp that barriers

         12  and trees planted alongside the facility and a

         13  purported sophisticated odor control system, and we

         14  don't know what harmful chemicals are in that

         15  system, or even if it works, will not mitigate in

         16  the slightest the serious health consequences from

         17  pollution, filth and vermin associated with transfer

         18  stations.

         19                 Garbage dumps clearly do not belong

         20  in neighborhoods where children live and play.  The

         21  health and well being of our children by far

         22  outweigh the Mayor's political gamesmanship on this

         23  issue.  Solving the City's garbage crisis should not

         24  place children and other vulnerable residents at

         25  risk and cost upwards of $85 million, borne by City
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          2  tax payers, to satisfy a highly politicized notion

          3  of fairness.  I ask you --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, I'm going

          5  to have to ask you to --

          6                 MS. FRIEDMAN:  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  -- Stop.  I'm

          8  sorry.  I'm asking you, again, that if you have

          9  anything to add, please say so.  But, if you don't,

         10  I'm going to have to interrupt you.

         11                 MR. LELAND:  Thank you Mr. Chairman

         12  and Councilperson McMahon.  I'm going to be aware of

         13  your admonition and certainly try not to repeat

         14  what's been said before and much of what I had to

         15  say was already been said by Council Member McMahon.

         16    I'm the -- good, I'm glad.  I hope that doesn't

         17  count against my two minutes Mr. Chairman.

         18                 My name is Richard Leland.  I'm a

         19  member of Kramer, Levin, Naftalis and Frankel.  I'm

         20  the attorney for the Gracie Point Community Council,

         21  a community organization, which, among other things,

         22  is opposed to the East 91st MTS.

         23                 I'm not going to talk about the East

         24  91st MTS today.  These people are going to do it and

         25  they'll do a better job than I can.  But, I want to
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          2  talk about the shell game that's being played with

          3  this Committee and with this Council by the

          4  Department of Sanitation, and I want to talk about

          5  why I believe it's improper for there to be a ULURP

          6  going forward before there is a plan adopted.

          7                 I want to focus a lot on the

          8  environmental impact statement, which although it

          9  was adopted as final on April one, has not yet been

         10  the subject of findings by the Department of

         11  Sanitation, which is its obligation under SEQRA to

         12  do.  But, it is a plan that only, what the EIS and

         13  what's before you today is only a fraction of the

         14  plan.  You heard a lot of it.  We're negotiating

         15  about this, we're talking about that, we're going to

         16  look into this.  You've got a point, you're being

         17  asked to authorize, in effect, $320 million in

         18  expenditures to build four MTSs.

         19                 There is nothing in any piece of

         20  paper that's been presented to the Council or to

         21  this Committee or to Mr. McMahon's Committee, that

         22  indicates where this waste is going once it's in the

         23  barges, that indicates how much all of this is going

         24  to cost, that indicates what the environmental

         25  impacts are of building these machines and dumps to
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          2  deal with the waste.  So, it's as if they're going

          3  to in the barges and disappear over the horizon into

          4  Shangra La.  I submit to you that somebody's going

          5  to come back to this Council, after this boondoggle

          6  (phonetic) passes and ask you for more money to deal

          7  with something else, and we think that's improper.

          8  It's called segmentation.

          9                 I also want to point out that the

         10  discussion of alternatives in the EIS was totally

         11  faulty.  With respect to Manhattan sites, we've

         12  talked about that.  Of course, what you weren't told

         13  today was that some, most of the sites that were

         14  rejected in Manhattan were rejected in a commercial

         15  waste study, not in EIS, but in a commercial waste

         16  study, for the same reasons why East 91st Street is

         17  inappropriate.  They were near parks, they were in

         18  residential districts, they violated the

         19  Department's own siting rules.

         20                 I'm going to finish up.  I'm going to

         21  thank you. I've submitted something in writing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         23                 MS. DIAMOND:  Hello.  My name is

         24  Ellen Diamond. I'm a 65 year- old retiree, senior

         25  citizen, who moved to this neighborhood of East 91st
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          2  Street, I lived on 93rd and First, three years ago.

          3  I sincerely hope I live a good long time, but I

          4  chose this neighborhood partly because of a

          5  diagnosis of leukemia, which limits my lifetime.  I

          6  began to search around for a neighborhood that I

          7  thought would be beautiful and wonderful and

          8  peaceful, as opposed to where I lived in Greenwich

          9  Village at the time.

         10                 I found this neighborhood and I chose

         11  it because of a word that I haven't heard mentioned

         12  yet, which is its beauty.  These are little writings

         13  that I did since I moved up. It's a miracle to find

         14  myself after all those grey years of windowless

         15  offices, paper and copy machines, a feeling even on

         16  the best of days, trapped, buried miles and years

         17  away from what I loved, sitting once again without

         18  obligations other than to myself and those I love,

         19  outdoors, in the middle of a spring day.

         20                 This view, this park and where I'm

         21  talking of is directly over or two blocks away from

         22  where the transit station would be, this view, this

         23  park, draws us senior citizens like flies.  We sit

         24  here on benches in all weather because of beauty and

         25  safety, the sky, the air to breathe, open and grand.
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          2                 Children of all colors, infants in

          3  carriages, young couples skating and especially we

          4  elderly flock here.  It's a real neighborhood park,

          5  willow trees fall over the stone, fall over the

          6  stone walls.  We just want to be outside.  I'm so

          7  lucky to be sitting here on a Monday.  It could be

          8  any day just looking and sitting and walking, like I

          9  did as a girl.

         10                 DR. LIVINGSTON:  Hello.  I'm Dr.

         11  Arthur Livingston and I'm, after that presentation I

         12  have to be very cautious.  It was so lovely.  I have

         13  just a few comments because many things have already

         14  been said.  At this Hearing, I, in spite of East

         15  91st Street being characterized as political, the

         16  siting of a newly built MTS at East 91st Street is a

         17  politically motivated assault on our community, in

         18  my opinion.  What is been liken, it has been likened

         19  to biological warfare by some physicians.

         20                 When Mayor Bloomberg campaigned for

         21  his initial campaign, he said that the rate of

         22  childhood asthma and chronic pulmonary disease was

         23  extraordinarily high and something should be done

         24  about it, even if it cost a lot of money.  Nothing

         25  really has been done about it and what he's really
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          2  doing by setting up this enormous operation in the

          3  midst of a park and a very highly dense residential

          4  community, is providing equal opportunity to

          5  childhood asthma and chronic pulmonary disease.

          6                 I was very disappointed in looking at

          7  the DS' comments after the scoping Hearing, their

          8  written replies, because I thought they were, they

          9  really sloughed off the community's concerns.  I

         10  thought they were investigated.  I'll give you an

         11  example, our traffic problem with the, being close

         12  to the East Side Drive with the articulated bus

         13  service will be, again, really compounded by the

         14  traffic from the DS trucks.  When we complained

         15  about this, and we can certainly testify to the

         16  traffic jams in our community, the DS had, took two

         17  days in July and said it was not a problem.  It is a

         18  problem.  But, I think they slough our concerns.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 DR. LIVINGSTON:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very,

         23  very much. Yes?  I, of course, I mean, if, are you,

         24  if the question was whether we consider the fact

         25  that there's a landmark involved, yes, the answer is
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          2  yes.  Okay.  Crystal Ervin, Corri Friedman, Anna

          3  Zak, Irene Sher or Shen, I'm not sure, Shen, I'm

          4  sorry.  Is it Micaela Birmingham? And Sarah Alvarez.

          5  Did you submit a form?

          6                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I thought I

          7  could testify on her behalf.  Am I being told no I

          8  can't testify on her behalf?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You can, but you

         10  can't, you have to sign up and wait.  That's all.

         11  In other words, you go to the Sergeant- at- Arms,

         12  you fill out a form.  You're welcome.  If you want,

         13  you can submit testimony now, if you'd like.  Craig

         14  Wilson.  All right.  Let's go through this one more

         15  time. Crystal Ervin's here, Corri Friedman, Anna

         16  Zak, is Anna Zak in the room? She's gone.  No

         17  problem, thank you.  Irene Sher --

         18                 MS. SHEN:  Shen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Shen, again, I'm

         20  sorry. Okay.  Ms. Birmingham, I figured I'll skip.

         21  Sarah is gone, Craig Wilson is here.  We need one

         22  more.  Dyhalma Anaya.  Did I pronounce that

         23  correctly?  I'm sorry?

         24                 MS. ANAYA:  Dyhalma Anaya.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can you repeat
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          2  it one more time?

          3                 MS. ANAYA:  Dyhalma Anaya.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Dyhalma Anaya,

          5  I'm sorry. Okay.  Thank you.  Starting from the

          6  right, can you pass the mic down please?

          7                 MS. ERVIN:  Good day to the Members

          8  of the Committee.  My name is Crystal Ervin and I

          9  represent the Federation of Civic Associations of

         10  Southeast Queens and 33 Zone Civic, which is a

         11  member of said Federation.

         12                 I'd like to share a recent experience

         13  with the Members of the Committee.  Earlier this

         14  spring, I attended a forum on waste, sponsored by

         15  the New York Civic held at the Museum of the City of

         16  New York.  As you may have guessed, the hot button

         17  topic was the re- opening of the East 91st Street

         18  marine transfer station.

         19                 I was more than stunned by so- called

         20  facts that were being provided by a lay panelist

         21  regarding this issue.  A member of the audience who

         22  opposed the re- opening declared that he has lived

         23  in the targeted community since 1972, and it was an

         24  outrage that this site could be considered because

         25  of a proximity to a residential district, density of
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          2  the area, it was near a park, the truck traffic it

          3  would generate, the environmental health concerns

          4  associated with such an operation and the impact it

          5  would have on children and seniors of the community.

          6    I would just like to interject that that point,

          7  that scenario mirrors my community.

          8                 The gentleman was reminded of a

          9  small, not so small fact by a participating

         10  panelist, the fact being that the East 91st Street

         11  MTS was operating at this site when he moved into

         12  the area in  '72 and had been operating for some

         13  time -- excuse me -- and only recently closed in

         14  2000.

         15                 Although I squirmed in my seat for a

         16  great part of the forum, listening to the opponents

         17  of the plan, I had the sense enough to realize I was

         18  out- gunned in this venue and for survival sake,

         19  remained mum.  It was, however, very, a very

         20  educational experience for me because I realized how

         21  people live in their own little bubbles and

         22  regardless to their contribution to a problem, they

         23  can't recognize nor care to participate in a fair

         24  and equitable resolution.  Upon my exiting the

         25  museum on East 104th Street, what should I see --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You can submit a

          3  copy of your testimony, which we'll be happy to

          4  share with all the Members. Okay?

          5                 MS. ERVIN:  Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

          7  Next.

          8                 MS. SHEN:  Hi.  Good afternoon

          9  Chairman Felder and the Members of the Committee.

         10  My name is Irene Shen.  I work with the

         11  organization, the United Puerto Rican Organization

         12  of Sunset Park.  We are also founding members of

         13  OWN, the Organization of Waterfront Neighborhoods.

         14  UPROSE supports the Solid Waste Management Plan and

         15  the opening of all four marine transfer stations.

         16                 A lot's taken place here today and I

         17  don't want to lose sight of the some of the key

         18  issues, and one of those key issues for us is an

         19  issue of environmental racism, environmental

         20  injustice and economic injustice.

         21                 Sunset Park is a low income community

         22  of color and an immigrant community.  It's an

         23  environmentally overburdened community, one that's

         24  disproportionately impacted.  People live surrounded

         25  by waste transfer stations, power plants, the
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          2  Gowanus Expressway, a sludge treatment plant, brown

          3  fields and very little open space.  Community

          4  members have been breathing in dangerous particulate

          5  matter for years and years, and that's elders,

          6  children, who live with toxic hazards all over

          7  already.

          8                 UPROSE believes the Solid Waste

          9  Management Plan is the viable alternative for more a

         10  equitable distribution of waste throughout the City.

         11    The SWMP addresses environmental injustice and

         12  environmental racism better than anything else we've

         13  got and we've been looking at this for more than

         14  nine years, a shift from land to marine- based

         15  transfer station.  We're looking for equitable

         16  infrastructure, a move towards closing land- based

         17  transfer stations and proposing that boroughs take

         18  their fair share, something that Brooklyn, Bronx and

         19  Queens already does.

         20                 In particular, UPROSE supported and

         21  has supported the Hugo Neu recycling plant because

         22  we're encouraged by a move towards greater City-

         23  wide recycling, zero waste and a more sustainable

         24  New York, which means less toxic environmental

         25  justice communities and all communities impacted by
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          2  solid waste. Our vision for solid waste management

          3  does not include NIMBYism, but seeks some relief for

          4  communities struggling under excessive environmental

          5  burdens as we make a longer journey toward creating

          6  a more sustainable future in this City.

          7                 I'd like to second the concerns that

          8  Council Member Gonzalez raised about Hamilton Avenue

          9  carrying a load of ten community districts out of

         10  14.  So, we urge you to vote for the four marine

         11  transfer stations and the SWMP.  Thank you.

         12                 MS. FRIEDMAN:  Good afternoon.  My

         13  name is Corri Friedman and I'm here on behalf of the

         14  American Lung Association of the City of New York.

         15                 For more than 100 years, the Lung

         16  Association has worked to prevent lung disease and

         17  promote lung health among the residents of the five

         18  boroughs of New York City.  In that regard, on

         19  behalf of the organization, I'm here to offer

         20  support for the marine transfer station ULURP

         21  applications before the Committee, which will help

         22  address air quality issues and, therefore, the

         23  respiratory health of New Yorkers, especially those

         24  living with lung disease.

         25                 New Yorkers are exposed to some of
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          2  the most unhealthy air pollution levels in the

          3  country.  For the sixth year in a row, the American

          4  Lung Association's State of the Air 2005 Report

          5  found that the air quality in New York City is poor.

          6  In fact, Bronx, Kings and Richmond counties received

          7  F's for ozone levels, while Bronx, New York and

          8  Queens counties received F's for levels of particle

          9  pollution.  Ozone and particle pollution, both by-

         10  products of vehicle emissions, pose serious health

         11  threats for all New York City residents, especially

         12  those living with respiratory disease.

         13                 In our City, approximately two

         14  million residents suffer each year from respiratory

         15  illnesses, like emphysema and chronic bronchitis.

         16  Of particular concern is asthma, which has reached

         17  epidemic proportions.  New York City has the highest

         18  asthma mortality rate in the nation.  Estimates

         19  indicate that one million residents in the five

         20  boroughs have been diagnosed with asthma in their

         21  lifetime and currently 300,000 children in New York

         22  City are struggling to manage this serious and

         23  debilitating disease.

         24                 The fight against asthma hinges, in

         25  large part, on the ability of communities to reduce
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          2  environmental triggers that exacerbate asthma, of

          3  which air quality is a key factor.  Diesel powered

          4  garbage vehicles traveling our streets emit large

          5  quantities of ozone causing chemicals and

          6  particulate matter, which often trigger asthma

          7  episodes, shortness of breath, chest pain when

          8  inhaling deeply, wheezing, coughing, respiratory

          9  irritation and have additionally been shown to

         10  shorten human lives.

         11                 The draft Solid Waste Management

         12  Plan, including these three ULURPs, before the

         13  Subcommittee today is a comprehensive approach to

         14  transporting our solid waste that will eliminate

         15  millions of vehicle miles traveled annually by large

         16  diesel engine trucks.  The plan will reduce

         17  emissions of harmful pollutants, especially for our

         18  most over- burdened communities.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  From now on, if

         20  you want, since the bell is cutting many of you off,

         21  you can end off, saying I'm in favor or opposed,

         22  even though most of the testimony is clear on that.

         23  We do have copies of your testimony.  Thank you.

         24                 MS. BIRMINGHAM:  Good afternoon.  My

         25  name is Micaela Birmingham and I'm testifying today
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          2  as the Director of the Planning Center of the

          3  Municipal Art Society and on behalf of the

          4  Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance, also a project of

          5  the Society.

          6                 Our non- profit organization has

          7  championed excellence in architecture, planning and

          8  design in New York City for over 100 years.  I would

          9  like to commend several of the elements of the

         10  proposed Solid Waste Management Plan, in particular,

         11  its incorporation of many of the recommendations of

         12  the community- based plan created by the

         13  Organization of Waterfront Neighborhoods, OWN.

         14                 In 2001, the Planning Center

         15  published Planning for All New Yorkers, a compendium

         16  of exemplary community- based planning initiative,

         17  which highlighted the OWN plan.  We support its

         18  recommendations for the retrofit and reuse of

         19  existing marine transfer stations for the equitable

         20  handling of commercial waste and for a commitment to

         21  waste reduction, reuse and recycling.

         22                 Specifically, we support the re-

         23  opening of marine transfer stations in order to

         24  begin providing relief to communities overburdened

         25  with noxious uses.  We would ask the City Council to
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          2  recognize the value of community- based planning

          3  efforts such as these and acknowledge that whether

          4  it be the siting of a waste transfer station or a

          5  stadium, a better planning process is needed.

          6                 With litigation as the only real

          7  planning power afforded to communities, New York is

          8  far behind other cities, like Seattle and Rochester,

          9  who require community visions be the building blocks

         10  for the city's comprehensive plan.

         11                 It is our hope that the City Council

         12  will not only support this action, but enact policy

         13  institutionalizing an official role for community-

         14  based planning in New York City. Thank you.

         15                 MR. WILSON:  Good afternoon.  My name

         16  is Craig Wilson and I'm the Director of New York

         17  Policy and Advocacy for the New York League of

         18  Conservation Voters.  On behalf of the League, I'm

         19  pleased to be here today to offer our support for

         20  all the ULURP applications pending before the

         21  Subcommittee today for the MTSs.

         22                 New York City has a very serious air

         23  quality problem.  You've heard a little bit about it

         24  from Corri from the American Lung Association, from

         25  many others speaking in regard to their community's
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          2  concerns.  But, I want to focus in a little bit more

          3  on what our air quality situation is as a City.

          4                 Right now, we are out of attainment

          5  for ozone air quality and fine particulate matter

          6  air quality.  Sounds like Greek, what does that

          7  really mean?  These particles that are emitted from

          8  diesel trucks bury deep in your lungs, they cause

          9  the vital tissue in your lungs to not work or

         10  function properly and, essentially, for lack of a

         11  better word, corrode and make your lungs

         12  ineffective.  They're, the pollutants are linked to

         13  a series of health problems, such as lung cancer,

         14  asthma and even heart attacks.

         15                 So, when we look to evaluate this

         16  plan, we consider the benefits to the entire City

         17  and we're supportive of this plan because it will

         18  produce, or I should say there will be six million

         19  fewer diesel truck miles driven.  So, while everyone

         20  is looking out for the best interest of their

         21  communities, they also need to look out for the

         22  interest of the City and also the communities that

         23  have been overburdened by these facilities for far

         24  too long.

         25                 So, therefore, we urge the Council
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          2  and the Subcommittee to approve all the ULURP

          3  applications before them.

          4                 MS. ANAYA:  Good afternoon.  My name

          5  is Dyhalma Anaya and I'm a lifelong resident of

          6  Sunset Park, a co- founder of Youth Justice and a

          7  youth organizer at the United Puerto Rican

          8  Organization of Sunset Park, commonly known as

          9  UPROSE.

         10                 UPROSE is a co- founder of the

         11  organizations of waterfront neighborhoods owned.

         12  Our neighborhood is a community of color and is

         13  heavily burdened with environmental injustices. It's

         14  not fair.  It's affecting our children.  I live two

         15  blocks away from the waste transfer station and my

         16  mom can't take a deep breath without wheezing.  I

         17  didn't bring a picture, but I brought my mom.

         18                 My cousin has been in and out of the

         19  hospital for asthma since she was born.  We don't

         20  need to live like this.  We already have the Gowanus

         21  Expressway to affect our air.  This Committee has

         22  the power to reduce my mom's asthma attacks by

         23  improving the MTS and getting garbage transferred by

         24  barges.  If all four marine transfer stations are

         25  retrofitted, there will also be a borough equity.
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          2                 We ask that each borough take their

          3  fair share of garbage and Brooklyn will continue to

          4  take ours.  However, SWMP plans are saying that the

          5  Hamilton Avenue MTS will be taking most of its

          6  garbage, wait, most of it in Brooklyn, and we ask

          7  for more equality among the Brooklyn transfer

          8  stations too.  We ask for the same rights that

          9  privileged communities have.  Stop sending the 18-

         10  wheelers into our neighborhoods to transfer garbage.

         11    Help us make Sunset Park an easier place to

         12  breathe, retrofit all four marine transfer stations

         13  and support the SWMP.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Your mother is

         15  here?

         16                 MS. ANAYA:  My mom?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         18                 MS. ANAYA:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Where is she?

         20  You have a lot to be proud of.  Thank you very much.

         21    Okay.  Philip Opher, Anthony Ard, Wendy Burrell.

         22  Okay, who is that? Wendy Burrell. Thank you.  Mary

         23  Flieger, Jessica Lappin, Burton M. Freeman.  I'm

         24  sorry, and Audrey Grieco.  Is everyone here?  Okay.

         25  Can you please identify yourself, the three
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          2  gentlemen that are at the desk.  Good, next.

          3  Whoever else, we have four.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay, my name

          5  is.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Whoever, just

          7  one moment.

          8                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm going to go

         10  through this one more time.  Philip Opher, you're

         11  here, Anthony Ard, that's you, good, Mary Flieger,

         12  not here, yes.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mary Flieger

         14  had to leave. She gave me two position papers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, I'd love

         16  to have them.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Okay.  The one

         18  is for the -- and Brewer School, which is a school

         19  which serves special needs and special --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  That doesn't

         21  come to me. What's the other one?

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  From the

         23  builder of the building which is one block away from

         24  the waste transfer station.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, that's the
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          2  one we get. So, Mary Flieger is out.  Jessica Lappin

          3  is not here either. Burton M. Freeman is here and

          4  Audrey Grieco is here.  So, we need two more.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mr. Chairman,

          6  I would yield my place at the table to Mr. Evan

          7  Firestone, who is also from our neighborhood, who is

          8  signed up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Does that mean

         10  you want to wait?

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No, I'll

         12  relinquish my position.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You wish to sit?

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes, I'll

         15  submit my --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, sure.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  -- Comments in

         18  writing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Sure, Evan

         20  Firestone.  You don't, you can stay at the table.

         21  You just won't say anything, that's all.  Unless,

         22  you want to wait for his turn.  And Jonathan Piel.

         23  Are you here?  Okay.  We're ready.  Go ahead.

         24                 MR. OPHER:  I am Philip Opher.  A co-

         25  op owner at 1725 York Avenue --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  One minute.  Can

          3  the Sergeant- at- Arms, thank you.

          4                 MR. OPHER:  Start again?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Continue.

          6                 MR. OPHER:  Okay.  Ph.D. In Economics

          7  and retired as group vice- president with the

          8  leading engineering concern Parsons.  You have

          9  package of ten pages, that is mine.  I was going to

         10  just comment on what it is in that package.

         11                 Here, we have the City Planning Map

         12  9a.  The City Planning Map 9a shows that the

         13  intended station is surrounded by areas which are

         14  not eligible to be within 400 yards from the

         15  station.  There was a regulation which was in effect

         16  in 2004 under which Sanitation will not place any

         17  station within 400 yards, 400 yards of areas which

         18  are zoned either residential or park.

         19                 And, here we are with the following

         20  areas which are within 7/10 of feet or even less.

         21  The Asphalt Green treasure, Manhattan's sole Olympic

         22  indoor swimming pool, if we are all loving the

         23  Olympics.  The Asphalt Green north building, the

         24  children playground, all zoned residential 7- 2.

         25  The York Avenue high- rises across the road zoned
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          2  residential ten.  You have it in your package.

          3                 The remaining footprint of Asphalt

          4  Green buildings, which is overwritten on the zoning

          5  map as Murphy Square, written by the Zoning

          6  Authority on top of a previous manufacturing 1- 4.

          7  Then, the famous ramp, which is bringing the trucks

          8  into the station, which is trespassing, actually,

          9  not only bothering, but trespassing the residential

         10  7- 2 zone.

         11                 Then, the City landmarks.  The

         12  Sanitation Department declared in its papers of

         13  2004, says there are no landmarks within the area

         14  and there is a landmark Murphy Building, the Murphy,

         15  which is pictured in photographs that you have with

         16  you here.

         17                 In addition to this --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm sorry, I'm

         19  going to have to cut you off.

         20                 MR. OPHER:  Yeah, I just want to

         21  mention two words --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Two words?

         23                 MR. OPHER:  The two words are Gracie

         24  Mansion.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, thank you.
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          2     Since Mr. Piel is taking your place, I'm sorry,

          3  Mr. Firestone is taking your place, my apologies, so

          4  I'll let him speak next.

          5                 MR. FIRESTONE:  It's off now.

          6  Chairman Felder, my fellow citizens, my name is Evan

          7  Firestone and I'm here to represent my three

          8  children who all have had asthmatic episodes in the

          9  past and we live across the street from the truck

         10  entrance to the proposed 91st Street facility.

         11                 Any new transfer station should not

         12  be located in a densely populated residential

         13  neighborhood.  This is a new station, four times as

         14  large as the existing station.  This is not a

         15  refurbishment.  There, the City's waste disposal

         16  issue is a very important issue and I support the

         17  Sanitation Department and its efforts to move this

         18  forward into the 21st century and the work of this

         19  Council.  But, there have been a lot of

         20  misrepresentations in this Hearing and over the

         21  course of the two or three years that this plan has

         22  been put forward.  Let me quickly get to a few of

         23  them.

         24                 The first is that I want to, I want

         25  to clarify this issue because it's been
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          2  misrepresented today many times. New York,

          3  Manhattan's residential trash does not go to other

          4  boroughs.  It does not go to Queens, it does not go

          5  to Brooklyn, it does not go to the Bronx.  It goes

          6  to New Jersey.  The fair share argument which keeps

          7  being raised is not accurate.  The trash does not go

          8  to other boroughs.

          9                 Commercial trash is a much more

         10  complicated issue. As you heard the Sanitation

         11  Department say, they do not have a plan to

         12  adequately get that commercial trash anywhere, much

         13  less to 91st Street.  As you've also heard them say,

         14  there is no plan to immediately reduce the other

         15  neighborhoods's burdens.  That is a laudable motive.

         16    I support the motives of those of people in this

         17  room and who have fought for that, but this plan

         18  does not do that.

         19                 So, my conclusion here is, destroying

         20  the neighborhood around 91st Street does not, does

         21  not address the valid concerns of these, of these

         22  people.  The second -- okay, I have a full set of

         23  commands with other issues, population, traffic,

         24  there's a whole series of things, all have been

         25  misrepresented that I hope that you get to them.
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          2  Thank you very much for your time.

          3                 MR. FREEMAN:  Okay.  I'm Burton

          4  Freeman.  I'm interested in the Asphalt Green and

          5  the children who are serviced by the Asphalt Green

          6  facility.  I support all of the testimony of Carol

          7  Tweedy, but would like to supplement it.

          8                 First of all, she did not emphasize

          9  sufficiently the mixture of children that are

         10  serviced by Asphalt Green. Asphalt Green has a

         11  summer camp program, about 15 percent, about, that's

         12  about 60 to 70 children are on scholarship coming

         13  from other parts of the City.

         14                 The schools that are serviced by

         15  Asphalt Green are from West Harlem, East Harlem and

         16  other parts of the City, as well as the Upper East

         17  Side.  One thing you have to do, and you should do a

         18  site visit, you go to see where that ramp goes.

         19  That ramp, which is going to have trucks, and those

         20  trucks burns fossil fuel, let me tell you that.

         21  Those trucks will be polluting the summer camp, the

         22  playground where children practice soccer, baseball

         23  and so on and on behalf of those children, I ask you

         24  not to approve that plan.  Thank you.

         25                 MS. GRIECO:  Thank you Mr. Chairman.
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          2  I'm Audrey Grieco, a long time resident of

          3  Yorkville.  I, for many years I was an educator of

          4  children everywhere from second grade to tenth and

          5  then director of admissions of a high school.

          6                 My concerns certainly are of the area

          7  in Yorkville, certainly the safety issue of the

          8  children is paramount.  It's not only, and believe

          9  me, I am, agree 100 percent that the pollution is no

         10  good for any child or any person, young, old or

         11  whatever in the area.  But, we also have a safety

         12  issue, York Avenue being a two way street and the

         13  buses end at 92nd Street, right there at the Asphalt

         14  Green and they have to turn around.  What does it

         15  take?  Hopefully not a child who is going to get

         16  killed or maimed because of an accident, which is

         17  just waiting to happen in that area.

         18                 I was very disappointed to hear the

         19  people here today.  I've attended many of these

         20  meetings.  Nowhere did the people who were here at

         21  this table say that they truly looked at the City.

         22  The last time I looked, Manhattan was an island,

         23  we're surrounded by water.  I cannot believe that

         24  there isn't one place in this City that they cannot

         25  find to put a marine transfer station.
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          2                 They're doing the one at 91st Street

          3  because it's there.  An area that was also was zoned

          4  very differently many years ago, when that was put

          5  up in 1940.  We have areas of this City that are

          6  available, but they need to be really seriously

          7  looked at.  Thank you.

          8                 MR. PIEL:  Thank you Chairman Felder.

          9  I'm Jonathan Piel, President of the Henderson Place

         10  Historic District Association and a member of the

         11  Gracie Point Community Council. Thank you for this

         12  opportunity to share with you the concerns that lead

         13  my neighbors and me, the residents of the Henderson

         14  Place Historic District to oppose the Department of

         15  Sanitation's plan to build a garbage processing

         16  facility at East 91st Street and the East River.

         17                 This site is absolutely inappropriate

         18  and so is bound to fail any reasonable application

         19  of the standards that govern the universal land use

         20  review process.  To explore the point, I would like

         21  to share with you a definition of a completely

         22  inappropriate site.  Such a site should be within a

         23  few feet of a public park.  The proposed facility

         24  would directly abut the Bobby Wagner Walk, a

         25  promenade, fishing quay, jogging and bicycle path
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          2  that runs along the East River.

          3                 Such a site should within a half mile

          4  of landmark structures.  The proposed site is

          5  directly across the FDR Drive from the municipal

          6  asphalt plant, within two blocks of Gracie Mansion

          7  and within four blocks of the Henderson Place

          8  Historic District, which consists of 24 Queen Anne

          9  style brick town houses built in the 1880's.

         10                 Such a site should be on a Class A

         11  flood plain. The proposed site sits directly on a

         12  Class A flood plain, through which runs the FDR

         13  Drive, a four lane highway.

         14                 Such a site should be within 400 feet

         15  of a densely populated residential neighborhood.

         16  The community surrounding the site is home to more

         17  than 70,000 people, 2,000 of them live in the

         18  Stanley Isaacs Houses and the John Hays Homes

         19  houses.

         20                 We who live in this community enjoy

         21  the services of food, markets, restaurants, cinemas,

         22  night spots, physical fitness centers, barber shops,

         23  nail parlors.  In short, this is a neighborhood of

         24  the kind that a Mayor, City Council Members and

         25  officials of every City agency would proudly point
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          2  to as evidence for the successful way in which they

          3  are managing public affairs, what a perfect place

          4  for a garbage processing plant.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.  Michael

          6  F. Rochford. He's here.  Ray Kairys, is Ray Kairys

          7  here?  Good.  Denise Williams, Helen DiSanto, she

          8  left?  Carlotta Giglio, Helen DiSanto.  How many do

          9  we have?  Okay, are there any more?  Laura Hofmann,

         10  what?  All right, I'll take the next person.

         11  Timothy Logan.  We have six?  We have five.  Timothy

         12  Logan?  Great. Okay, we're ready.  Pass the

         13  microphone please.

         14                 MS. GIGLIO:  Thousands of big,

         15  smelly, dirty, noisy waste management trucks in

         16  addition to hundreds of other trucks and vehicles

         17  zooming up and down the street all day and night,

         18  polluting and emitting the most disgusting odors and

         19  setting off car alarms along the way, or screeching

         20  their brakes or blaring their horns when stuck in

         21  traffic, people having to constantly cover their

         22  noses and ears, truck drivers who illegally park

         23  their filthy trucks in front of our homes or in bus

         24  stops, major health issues, structural damage to our

         25  homes, living with rodents, children attending
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          2  schools who cannot concentrate because of these

          3  distractions or worse yet, out sick because of them.

          4    Yes, ladies and gentlemen of the City Council,

          5  welcome to my living hell in

          6  Williamsburg/Greenpoint, where for years the

          7  onslaught of waste management trucks have devastated

          8  and continue to devastate my block and residential

          9  neighborhood.

         10                 I live and lived on Metropolitan

         11  Avenue for the past 53 years, two and a half blocks

         12  from the BQE and where the L Train runs directly

         13  under my house.  I am an active member of OUTRAGE,

         14  the Don Bosco Columbiettes, Saint Francis of Paola

         15  Church, the Northside Catholic Academy and am

         16  involved in many other community organizations.

         17                 I know first- hand what has happened

         18  to my neighborhood and those who reside there as a

         19  result of the invasion of all these trucks and the

         20  cargo they carry.  I retired almost three years ago

         21  and you would not believe the many ailments, doctor

         22  visits and prescription drugs I've had to endure in

         23  that period of time.

         24                 I know what my friends in Staten

         25  Island suffered, I even signed petitions for them,
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          2  but please, two wrongs do not make a right, this

          3  must stop.  The people in this community should

          4  never have had to endure handling 40 percent of the

          5  City's garbage.

          6                 Williamsburg/Greenpoint is a

          7  thriving, vibrant community.  Every day new

          8  buildings are going up and many Manhattanites and

          9  people from all over the country are moving in. The

         10  downside is more garbage and in the near future,

         11  10,000 units will be built in accordance with the

         12  riverfront revitalization project in

         13  Greenpoint/Williamsburg, even more garbage.

         14  However, our community has never attempted to avoid

         15  responsibility for handling our own waste.  Please

         16   --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'd love for

         18  your to submit your testimony.

         19                 MS. GIGLIO:  Okay.  Please, vote for

         20  the MTA's.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         22                 MS. GIGLIO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Next.

         24                 MS. HOFMANN:  Hello.  My name is

         25  Laura Hofmann. I'm a lifelong resident of Greenpoint
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          2  and I'm very active in my community and serve on the

          3  board of several organizations in my community.  I

          4  understand that the City has weakened its position

          5  to put all the SWMP's proposed MTSs on line and I

          6  hope that isn't true.  It's very important that

          7  communities begin taking responsibility for handling

          8  their own waste.  Our community already takes care

          9  of a great deal of the City's waste water and solid

         10  waste.  It is wrong to keep treating our community

         11  like, like we are second- class citizens.  Our

         12  children deserve to live in an area that's not

         13  environmentally overburdened.

         14                 My oldest grandson lives on the

         15  corner of Union Avenue and Metropolitan Avenue, at

         16  the edge of Greenpoint/Williamsburg.  He's three

         17  years old and has already been treated for asthma.

         18  The noise, vibrations and dust are unbelievable

         19  there due to the amount and performance quality of

         20  truck traffic passing this building.  I often

         21  observe the truck's dust and debris hitting my

         22  grandson's second floor window and his window fan is

         23  always caked with filth despite constant washing.

         24                 Many of those trucks are carrying the

         25  City's solid waste.  This is a picture of my
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          2  grandson.  This isn't fair.  My grandson deserves a

          3  better quality of life, better air to breathe and

          4  the ability to rest without hearing and feeling the

          5  constant noise and vibrations.  I've heard that

          6  folks are referring to our community's desire for

          7  equity and fairness as environmental revenge.  Now

          8  isn't that ridiculous?

          9                 The proper thing to do would be to

         10  graciously thank our neighborhood for carrying the

         11  City's trash bags.  You would then offer to carry

         12  the bags the rest of the way, or at least carry your

         13  own bag.  It's that simple, plain old common

         14  courtesy and dignity.  Please open the MTSs.

         15                 MR. ROCHFORD:  Thank you Members of

         16  the Committee. My  -- I'm finished? Already?  Thank

         17  you.  My name is Michael Rochford.  I'm Executive

         18  Director of the Saint Nicholas Neighborhood

         19  Preservation Company.  We serve over 5,000 children,

         20  families and seniors in Williamsburg/Greenpoint.

         21  I'm here testifying in support of the ULURP action,

         22  to convert four transfer stations in Manhattan and

         23  Brooklyn and Queens to make them operational.

         24                 At the present time, the City has

         25  burdened three communities with the obligation of
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          2  processing over 80 percent of the waste produced by

          3  the entire City.  Of those communities, Williamsburg

          4  processes 40 percent of all the commercial waste

          5  produced in the City of New York.  Our residential

          6  streets are clogged with a 24- hour parade of

          7  garbage trucks.  Williamsburg alone handles 4,000

          8  garbage truck trips each day, mainly on just two

          9  streets, one of them being Metropolitan Avenue.

         10  This will grow with the addition of two new, New

         11  York City super sanitation garages, which will be

         12  flanking the largest privately owned transfer

         13  stations in the City.

         14                 All the garbage is trucked through

         15  the residential streets of Williamsburg.  The

         16  largest single source of this volume obviously

         17  emanates from Manhattan, which is, and is trucked to

         18  Williamsburg, and then reloaded onto massive tractor

         19  trailer trucks, which travel the same two streets

         20  out of our neighborhood to commercial dump

         21  facilities.

         22                 The land- based transfer stations in

         23  our neighborhood are substandard facilities.  Unlike

         24  the marine transfer stations, land- based transfer

         25  stations create constant noise and odor, low air
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          2  quality, high asthma rates, damage the

          3  infrastructure and an overall environment, and the

          4  overall environment that diminishes the quality of

          5  life, as well as community development.  The marine

          6  transfer stations at the water's edge mitigate these

          7  conditions.

          8                 The current situation is an unfair

          9  and lopsided burden on one neighborhood, which must

         10  be addressed by this ULURP action before you today.

         11  Making the Manhattan transfer stations operational,

         12  as proposed under this ULURP action, brings logic,

         13  balance and indeed fairness to the City process of

         14  removing garbage.

         15                 From an operational point of view, it

         16  makes no sense to truck garbage through Brooklyn's

         17  residential streets only to truck it back out.  The

         18  current approach adds major wear and tear to the

         19  City's bridge and infrastructure.

         20                 The four marine transfer stations

         21  will bring balance to the system and allow each

         22  borough to handle its own volume of waste.  Finally,

         23  it remains painfully unfair to burden our

         24  residential community with such a disproportionate

         25  share of the garbage burden.  We urge the Land Use
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          2  Committee to support the marine transfer station

          3  proposal.

          4                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Good afternoon.  My

          5  name is Denise Williams.  I'm the President of the

          6  Sunshine Community Garden in Williamsburg Brooklyn.

          7  What I would like to say right now, is that if all

          8  were fair in life and garbage, Brooklyn, the Bronx

          9  and Staten Island would no longer be dumped on.

         10                 As it is, we will still have one or

         11  two marine transfer stations in the

         12  Greenpoint/Williamsburg area, as well as the

         13  existing land- based marine transfer stations.  The

         14  proposed plan calls for a much cleaner and, calls

         15  for a much cleaner means of dealing with what none

         16  of us wants to deal with in the first place, our own

         17  trash.

         18                 I would also like to say that the

         19  children in the Greenpoint/Williamsburg area, as

         20  well as the rest of the world, are real, you know.

         21  It's not just one person's backyard versus the other

         22  person's backyard.  We're talking about our planet.

         23  That's all I have to say.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         25                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I support the SWMP.
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          2                 MR. KAIRYS:  Good afternoon

          3  Councilman Felder, Members of the Committee.  My

          4  name is Ray Kairys.  I'm the Chairman of

          5  Williamsburg/Greenpoint OUTRAGE, Organizations

          6  United for Trash Reduction and Garbage Equity.

          7  OUTRAGE is a coalition of 32 community, church and

          8  civic organizations, which was formed in 1999, to

          9  reduce the amount and impact of solid waste

         10  processing in East Williamsburg and Southern

         11  Greenpoint, which currently processes more than 40

         12  percent of our City's solid waste at 16 waste

         13  transfer stations.

         14                 We are here today, together with our

         15  fellow members of the Organization of Waterfront

         16  Neighborhoods, to support the re- opening of the

         17  proposed marine transfer stations as a key element

         18  of a new, more equitable solid waste plan, which

         19  will finally begin to reduce the amount of garbage

         20  and trucks in our overburdened neighborhood and

         21  ensure that each part of the City handles a fair

         22  share of garbage.

         23                 When the City reduced and then closed

         24  the Fresh Kills Landfill without a viable

         25  alternative plan, the land- based transfer stations
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          2  and the over 4,000 additional trucks per day they

          3  generated overwhelmed our neighborhood with traffic,

          4  smells, rats and other vermin.

          5                 I joined OUTRAGE and I've taken time

          6  off my job to be here today because I am concerned

          7  about the health and safety of the community in

          8  which I was born and raised.  The community that I'm

          9  raising my own children and the community in which

         10  my elderly mother still resides.  I represent

         11  parents and children of Saint Nicholas School,

         12  located right between two major routes, Metropolitan

         13  Avenue and Grand Street, who deal with the

         14  overwhelming traffic and smells every day as they

         15  walk to school and sit in their classrooms.

         16                 Re- opening the proposed marine

         17  transfer stations is a key step in a more equitable

         18  solid waste plan, which reduces the concentration of

         19  garbage processing in just a few communities like

         20  ours, and it replaces the long haul trucks which

         21  serve them with barges and rail, and replaces the

         22  outmoded and poorly run land- based stations with

         23  more environmentally sound facilities. We approve

         24  the opening of the MTSs.

         25                 MR. LOGAN:  Hi.  Timothy Logan with
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          2  the Consumer Policy Institute of Consumers Union,

          3  the nation's largest consumer organization with over

          4  four millions members.

          5                 The reality is that consumers have

          6  not been granted the opportunity to respond to

          7  market concerns in regard to waste.  In order for

          8  consumers to respond to the burdens they create and

          9  to begin to addressing their part in the problem,

         10  there needs to be a feedback loop.  With this in

         11  mind, one might begin siting, by placing facilities

         12  where the greatest impact is created.

         13                 The Department of Sanitation's

         14  Commissioner Doherty has publicly stated on multiple

         15  occasions that Community District Eight in Manhattan

         16  generates more than any other in the City.  In fact,

         17  the Manhattan Solid Waste Advisory Board, in a 2003

         18  analysis, found 369 tons per day of putrescible and

         19  recycle materials generated on average in that

         20  community district alone. This is more than half the

         21  projected tonnage scheduled for the East 91st Street

         22  marine transfer station, the residential piece. They

         23  additionally found within that area in the

         24  neighborhood of 2,600 tons a day of commercial

         25  waste.  So, if we're talking about people doing
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          2  their fair share and taking their fair part, this is

          3  where it begins.

          4                 I wanted to address some of the

          5  concerns that were raised earlier.  The City Council

          6  and the world were put on notice of the City's plan

          7  for export on July 31, 2002. Councilman McMahon and

          8  Counsel to the Sanitation and Solid Waste Committee,

          9  Carmen Cognetta were both present, as was I, at the

         10  time.  In fact, Councilman McMahon was standing up

         11  front in support of the plan at the time.

         12                 Further, a two year extension on the

         13  Solid Waste Management Plan by the Department of

         14  Environmental Conservation, a State agency, was

         15  granted in October 2002, again putting the Council

         16  and world on notice of the timetable involved.  If

         17  the Council didn't recognize a need to find and

         18  develop an alternative plan then, it wasn't because

         19  alternative planning was an unknown concept.

         20                 See, in spring of 2000, the

         21  Organization of Waterfront Neighborhood presented an

         22  alternative plan and, again, in June of 2004 -- I'm

         23  wrapping up -- in June of 2004, the New York City

         24  Zero Waste Campaign also presented an alternative

         25  plan that specifically dealt with waste prevention,
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          2  reuse, recycling and composting, something I've not

          3  otherwise heard being presented here and you,

          4  personally, along with every other Member of this

          5  City Council were invited --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MR. LOGAN:  I'm sorry, I can't help

          9  but laugh and you said I was encouraged to laugh

         10  whenever you said something funny.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  86th Street,

         13  four blocks from the 91st Street transfer, proposed

         14  transfer station.  I'm on the board of our co- op

         15  apartment, which contains 135 families and over 500

         16  residents in total, all of whom are vociferously and

         17  strongly opposed to this proposed transfer station.

         18                 Now, I believe and I believe all of

         19  my fellow homeowners in the area believe that the

         20  City can achieve air improvement and environmental

         21  justice without inflicting a horrible injustice on

         22  our neighborhood.  We intend, for many of the

         23  reasons you've heard today, to vociferously oppose

         24  this, both electorally and legally, and we believe

         25  that we will ultimately prevail.
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          2                 If necessarily, if necessary, legally

          3  in delaying and eventually preventing this

          4  abomination from occurring. Because of the fact that

          5  the City has not been forthcoming in terms of its

          6  presentations and environmental impact statements on

          7  issues like serious, giving serious consideration or

          8  discussion of Manhattan alternatives, or serious

          9  consideration of the traffic problems or the impact

         10  on recreational facilities or recognizing the

         11  significant changes in growth and population in this

         12  area since the original transfer station was

         13  established and since it was shut.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         15                 MS. SCHORR:  Good afternoon.  My name

         16  is Segaal Schorr and my testimony is important

         17  because I represent the youth of the Upper East Side

         18  and I'm 20 years old and I've lived on 88th and York

         19  for 20 years.

         20                 I don't think, I actually was also a

         21  kid that went to Asphalt Green and the distance

         22  between being at camp and where the garbage is is

         23  less than double the distance between where I am

         24  sitting and you are right now.  That's how close it

         25  is.  We, it's been there and for as long as I can
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          2  remember, well, six years ago, we never really went

          3  above 91st and the park and now, suddenly, I go

          4  jogging there and the past six years has been very

          5  different.  The reason I'm not wearing anything is

          6  because I just got back from college yesterday.

          7                 I want to say to all the people that

          8  have garbage in their neighborhood, I don't think

          9  that it's a political discussion whether or not one

         10  area should have the, more burden than another area.

         11    I think that every borough and every community

         12  should share responsibility.  But, I think that it's

         13  your, the political discussion here really is how

         14  and from what, how to do this, how to make it

         15  equitable for everybody.

         16                 What I'm hearing is 720 tons of

         17  garbage comparable to 1,500 tons on 59th Street

         18  means that 91st Street is just really not even

         19  efficient.  Like I said, where it is in comparison

         20  to where the children will be in Asphalt Green is so

         21  close.  The community has changed so much that it

         22  would be so horrible if that was opened, it wouldn't

         23  even be efficient for the City.  If things need to

         24  be rebuilt, then they really just should look into

         25  other alternatives.
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          2                 I really urge you not to vote out of

          3  desperation because I think that what's been

          4  presented today was a short- term solution and not a

          5  real solution to this big problem.  I'd just like to

          6  finish by saying that I really think we need a new

          7  recycling initiative because I was really sad to see

          8  the Sanitation Department not say anything about it.

          9                 MS. MICHAELS:  My name is Adeline

         10  Michaels.  I'm Chair of the Concerns Citizens of

         11  Bensonhurst.  Today, I'm representing also the

         12  people of Southwest.  Councilman, of course you know

         13  you're part of our district and everybody's

         14  dissatisfied.  We've had our incinerator and we've

         15  had our protests, but I don't believe any one of us

         16  really is, any of the Sanitation Department is

         17  coming out and being prejudiced and siting the black

         18  community over the rest.

         19                 These transfer stations were put in

         20  place many years ago.  Neighborhoods change.  I

         21  remember a lot of Italian immigrants and Polish

         22  immigrants in Greenpoint, and as we progress we

         23  move.  It isn't that we're dumping on you, they had

         24  29 transfer stations in Greenpoint built way before

         25  you were born.  So, it isn't that we want it that
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          2  way, I feel we should bring new technology in.

          3  Europe is leaving us in their dust. Gassification is

          4  the leading technology, no more landfills, no more

          5  heavy barging.  It doesn't make any sense.

          6                 Assemblyman Colton (phonetic) called

          7  this situation a pig in a poke.  We're not doing no

          8  more recycling, electronics are a runaway in the

          9  garbage, tires are out there, when we should be

         10  reducing the garbage and hopefully bringing new

         11  technology in strong units like Europe has it and

         12  then having fair, fair amounts of clean air, no more

         13  asthma, no more heavy trucks.  But, nobody's opening

         14  the door.

         15                 Everybody's afraid of new technology

         16  and I believe one Carmen Cognetta just recently come

         17  in from Europe.  He said it's wonderful.  Europe

         18  loves it.  Rome is very happy with gassification.

         19  In his home town, they took a smaller unit and it's

         20  working out fine, 300 tons, the community took it,

         21  very happy with it.  There's no complaints.

         22                 So, I'm trying to get some funding

         23  through the Federal Government to put in a pilot

         24  program.  There's money out there and I've got to

         25  get to Senator Hillary Clinton and Shumer. So, I
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          2  hope that somebody in this room will help try to

          3  bring a pilot program in and then we can dump this

          4  plan.  Otherwise, it's going to keep going on and on

          5  and we're going to be doing the same things over

          6  again.  And, the burning is still continuing, Garden

          7  City and Newark.  So, we, we haven't, we haven't, we

          8  haven't changed the system.  Thank you.

          9                 MS. PIEL:  Good afternoon Chairman

         10  Felder and other Members of the Council.  I'm

         11  Madelaine Piel.  I am a member of Community Board

         12  Eight, but I'm not speaking on behalf of the

         13  community board.  I'm a member of the Gracie Point

         14  Community Council.  I'm not speaking on their behalf

         15  either, and I'm a member of the Henderson Place

         16  Historic District and I'm not speaking on their

         17  behalf either.  I'm speaking on behalf of good

         18  management and good thinking in terms of what we do

         19  in government, because I'm great believer in the

         20  strength of our great City and the intelligence that

         21  we have, including the people who advising the

         22  Chairs of the different Committees.

         23                 I have been to, I'm also a CERT

         24  (phonetic) person, but I'm not speaking on CERT's

         25  behalf either.  I'm one of the few people trained in
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          2  that area.  But, today, on nyc.gov, the website, it

          3  reveals that New York City ranks only behind Miami

          4  and New Orleans among United States cities most

          5  vulnerable to hurricane- related damage.  The

          6  hurricane season runs from June one, we're coming up

          7  to that, to November 30th, or approximately for five

          8  months out of each calendar year.  The other seven

          9  months are winter storm months, which included the

         10  March 12, 1888 blizzard, which dropped 20 inches of

         11  snow on New York City.

         12                 When you go to the Office of

         13  Emergency Management's map for hurricane evaluation

         14  zones, you will find that the East 91st Street area,

         15  the far east Upper East Side, has been evaluated by

         16  city planners, environmentalists and other paid City

         17  employees and outside consultants as a hurricane

         18  zone a and b zone, making East 91st Street and the

         19  East River and the area surrounding it, former

         20  wetlands, at very high risk for storm surge

         21  inundation.

         22                 I strongly recommend that we don't

         23  put a facility in a known, like, we won't get the

         24  insurance, we can't self insure, the disease will be

         25  carried through the streets on all the cars that go
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          2  by the East River Drive.  So, please support us in

          3  not putting it in a known flood zone.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you all

          5  very much.  The final panel.  Okay, the Reverend

          6  Joseph Parrish, Elena Conte, Ramon Cruz, Silkia

          7  Martinez.  Is there anyone else in the room that

          8  signed on to testify in favor of the stations that

          9  has not been called?  Thank you very much.  We're

         10  ready when you are.

         11                 REVEREND PARRISH:  I'm Reverend

         12  Joseph Parrish, Pastor of Saint John's Church in

         13  Elizabeth, New Jersey.  I live in Manhattan, I work

         14  in New Jersey.  I'm the Chairman of the

         15  Environmental Commission Archdiocese of New Jersey

         16  and of the New Jersey Environmental Watch, board

         17  member of the American Lung Association of New

         18  Jersey, for, that sponsors annual asthma camps for

         19  asthmatic children across New Jersey.

         20                 We hear environmental justice

         21  repeated regularly here, but if there is no justice

         22  everywhere, there is no justice anywhere, Dr. King

         23  said.  Mr. Chairman, there is no environmental

         24  justice in New Jersey.  All of Manhattan and Staten

         25  Island's garbage go to two neighborhoods in
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          2  Elizabeth, one in Elizabeth and one in Newark.  All

          3  of the children in all of those neighborhoods are

          4  affected by the impact of the trucks and the

          5  putrescent garbage coming there.

          6                 Asthmatics now comprise 40 percent of

          7  the children in that neighborhood in New Jersey and

          8  in the Ironbound section, where the little league is

          9  there, 100 percent, 100 percent. Every child on the

         10  Ironbound Little League has asthma.  It's the

         11  highest asthma rate in the world, in the world.

         12                 We need water and rail transport of

         13  garbage out of and away from minority communities,

         14  poor minority communities in New York as well as in

         15  New Jersey.  It is a terrible waste to use highly

         16  skilled truck drivers to move millions of tons of

         17  nearly zero value garbage dozen of miles to cause

         18  illnesses in children and elderly in poverty areas

         19  and other states, as well as in New York.  It is

         20  highly inflationary for the cost of everyone living

         21  in New York City, all of our goods are raised in

         22  price because of this inefficient way of

         23  transporting goods.  I'm in favor of the marine

         24  transfer stations and of the ULURP applications.

         25  Thank you sir.
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          2                 MS. CONTE:  Hi.  Good afternoon.  My

          3  name is Elena Conte and I'm from Sustainable South

          4  Bronx, a community- based organization in the South

          5  Bronx, which is the lowest income congressional

          6  district in the 50 states and where 98 percent of

          7  the people are people of color.  Sustainable South

          8  Bronx is a member of the Organization of Waterfront

          9  Neighborhoods.

         10                 There are two principles that are

         11  underlying the ULURP vote.  One is fairness, which

         12  is setting up of systems that distribute burdens

         13  equally, so that no community is crushed by them.

         14  And, the other is the sound treatment of the

         15  environment that nourishes us all in improvement in

         16  the quality of the air that all of us breathe.  This

         17  is an initiative that has City- wide impact.

         18                 With my testimony, there were a

         19  number of, everything else besides that, so I want

         20  to make it plain, a vote for all of the marine

         21  transfer stations is a vote for fairness and sound

         22  treatment of the environment.  Conversely, a vote

         23  against any of the marine transfer stations is a

         24  vote for injustice and disregard for the environment

         25  and those that live in it.  Anything besides that is
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          2  distraction.  It might be very clever.  It might be

          3  very passionate.  It might be coming from the exact

          4  right people, but it is simply distraction and I'd

          5  try to try and deconstruct that in my 58 seconds

          6  left.

          7                 There were a lot of comments put

          8  forward by the Council Members about what the

          9  communities' expectations are for this SWMP and they

         10  were all incorrect.  If they had spent less time

         11  grandstanding and more time actually listening to

         12  the public, they would have heard that every

         13  community member coming today from the most impacted

         14  communities is asking for an approval for the vote

         15  for the marine transfer stations.

         16                 We don't think that we're going to

         17  get relief overnight.  This is a long struggle.

         18  Elders in the neighborhood started it way before I

         19  did and I hope it doesn't go much longer, but I am

         20  my own person and we know that change doesn't happen

         21  overnight.  This was a planning initiative.  We

         22  started back looking around the neighborhood and

         23  seeing what was happening and saying, okay, we've

         24  got to come up with something that's going to

         25  alleviate our situation and be better for the City
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          2  as a whole. Alternatives were explored.

          3                 Now, this is not the SWMP vote.  The

          4  SWMP vote's going to come up.  The Council can do

          5  what it want.  It can solve every single problem.

          6  It can make sure that it has the guarantees of 59th

          7  Street.  We want them too for commercial waste.

          8  But, this is not the time for that.  We urgently

          9  urge the Council to go ahead and approve all four,

         10  all three of the MTS ULURPs and ask if you are not

         11  going to vote, what plan are you proposing for the

         12  alleviation of this urgent situation?  Thank you.

         13                 MR. CRUZ:  Hi.  My name is Ramon

         14  Cruz.  I'm a Policy Analyst with Environmental

         15  Defense, a national environmental organization.

         16  Thanks for the opportunity to testify and we

         17  submitted a written commentary.  However, I just to

         18  comment directly in response to previous comments by

         19  Council Members.

         20                 First, we think that this plan is the

         21  most responsible one that we have seen in the last

         22  decade.  What was irresponsible was closing Fresh

         23  Kills without a previous plan, right?  So, we have

         24  been, in the last few years, submitting comments to

         25  the Council whenever they have held Hearings and to
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          2  Sanitation.  So, they have made us participate of

          3  the process and what it seems with all the Council

          4  Hearings is that the Council was also participants.

          5  So, I think calling the process disingenuous is an

          6  overstatement.

          7                 In terms of inconsistency in

          8  submitting different parts of the SWMP, of the

          9  management plan, I mean, this is a 20 year plan and

         10  it is very difficult to, we can be 20 years just

         11  planning for it.  So, I think, I mean it is like

         12  saying that we cannot have, we should have waited

         13  for this moment to submit our recycling plan and we

         14  did and it's very successful now.  So, there's

         15  clearly priorities in, within this process.  So, the

         16  fact that the ULURP application, which we urge you

         17  to vote for and support, the fact that these are

         18  happening right now doesn't mean that, you know,

         19  that's, we should have waited to have the whole, the

         20  whole plan here.

         21                 In terms of alternatives, we work

         22  together with the Solid Waste Advisory Board in

         23  Manhattan and we went to each one of the 11

         24  community boards that have waterfront facilities.

         25  Nobody stepped up saying we have an alternative, we
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          2  want a marine transfer station.  So, therefore, the

          3  alternative, what we have on the table is what we

          4  have to vote for right now.  If this goes, it

          5  doesn't forward now, we will clearly be waiting

          6  another five years or so for a new plan and we

          7  cannot, we cannot allow that.  If you find

          8  alternatives, add it to the menu, that we need more

          9  export capacity.  Okay.

         10                 MS. MARTINEZ:  Good afternoon Chair.

         11  My name is Silkia Martinez and I'm a resident, long-

         12  term resident of Hunt's Point. My family, my

         13  daughter have been grown into this community and I'm

         14  also a member of Sustainable South Bronx and all the

         15  great things we do.  But, I'd like to acknowledge

         16  that there's 12,000 people that live with these

         17  trucks everyday and there's children that have been

         18  killed in Hunts Point via these trucks that come in

         19  and out of Hunts Point.

         20                 People might be negligent to say that

         21  they don't care, but our children are entitled to

         22  play.  My child cannot go outside being the fact

         23  that she might be exposed to all this soot that

         24  these trucks let out and emanate every day while

         25  they're idling in front of my home, because I'm
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          2  afraid of her becoming an asthmatic as myself.  I've

          3  seen children die of asthma in Hunts Point because

          4  of these trucks, and I am going to make it brief and

          5  say that I am in full support of the marine transfer

          6  stations because I see them every day when I walk

          7  by.  15 stations full of vermin and trucks while

          8  they're idling, while we're trying to do every day

          9  activity at home.  So, my is is support of the

         10  transfer stations.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         12  much, the Hearing is closed.

         13                 (Meeting concluded at 2:50 p.m.)
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